
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor/Chair 
Grant House 
Mayor Pro Tempore/Vice Chair 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator/ 
Executive Director 

Bendy White 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney/Agency Counsel 

Das Williams 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Dale Francisco 
Frank Hotchkiss 
Michael Self 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov

MARCH 23, 2010 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council and Redevelopment Agency meetings begin at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the 
Council/Redevelopment Agency after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s 
Office located at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular Council/Redevelopment Agency meeting, 
and at the beginning of each special Council/Redevelopment Agency meeting, any member of the public may address them 
concerning any item not on the Council/Redevelopment Agency agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should 
first complete and deliver a “Request to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the 
Council/Redevelopment Agency.  Should Council/Redevelopment Agency business continue into the evening session of a 
regular Council/Redevelopment Agency meeting at 6:00 p.m., the Council/Redevelopment Agency will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The Council/Redevelopment Agency, 
upon majority vote, may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or 
Council/Redevelopment Agency regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should 
first complete and deliver a “Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance 
Committee or Council/Redevelopment Agency. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the 
Council/ Redevelopment Agency.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the Council/Redevelopment Agency 
upon request of a Council/Agency Member, City staff, or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be 
approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your 
“Request to Speak” form, you should come forward to speak at the time the Council/Redevelopment Agency considers the 
Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV Channel 18, 
and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in Spanish on 
Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check the City TV 
program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for any changes 
to the replay schedule. 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Begins 
 2:00 p.m. - Redevelopment Agency Meeting 
 5:00 p.m. - Recess 
 6:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Reconvenes 
 
 
 
 
 
AFTERNOON SESSION 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
REGULAR REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 

1. Subject:  Proclamation Declaring March 21-27, 2010, as National Land 
Surveyors Week (120.04) 

 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

CITY COUNCIL 

2. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the adjourned regular meeting of March 8, 2010, and the regular meeting of 
March 9, 2010. 

3/23/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 1 



 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

CITY COUNCIL (CONT’D) 

3. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance Establishing Procedures For Appointment 
And Service Of Youth Member To Parks And Recreation Commission 
(570.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Section 2.08.020 of the Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code and Establishing Procedures for the Appointment and 
Service of a Youth Member to the Parks and Recreation Commission. 
  

4. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For Lease With Chuck's Waterfront Grill 
(330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a Lease Amendment with 
Richones, Inc., Doing Business as Chuck's Waterfront Grill, Located at 113 
Harbor Way, Effective April 22, 2010. 
  

5. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2010 Interim Financial Statements For The Seven 
Months Ended January 31, 2010 (250.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the Fiscal Year 2010 Interim Financial 
Statements for the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2010. 
  

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

6. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That the Redevelopment Agency Board waive the reading 
and approve the minutes of the special meeting of February 23, 2010, and the 
regular meeting of March 2, 2010. 
  

7. Subject:  Redevelopment Agency Fiscal Year 2010 Interim Financial 
Statements For The Seven Months Ended January 31, 2010 

Recommendation:  That the Redevelopment Agency Board accept the 
Redevelopment Agency Fiscal Year 2010 Interim Financial Statements for the 
Seven Months Ended January 31, 2010. 
  

3/23/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 2 



 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

NOTICES 

8. The City Clerk has on Thursday, March 18, 2010, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY REPORTS 

9. Subject:  Increased Funding For Transition House Affordable Housing 
Project (660.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council and the Redevelopment Agency Board take the 
following actions regarding the "Mom's Place" affordable housing project at 421 
East Cota Street: 
A. That Council approve and authorize the Community Development Director 

to negotiate and execute, subject to approval as to form by the City 
Attorney, an amendment to a loan agreement with Transition House to, 
among other things, increase the loan amount by $170,000 in federal 
Home Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) funds for construction of 
new units on the property;  

B. That the Agency Board approve and authorize the Deputy Director to 
negotiate and execute, subject to approval as to form by Agency Counsel, 
a loan agreement with Transition House in the amount of of $39,391 for 
construction of new units on the property as a contingency in the event 
that Fiscal Year 2011 HOME funds are not awarded;  

C. That the Agency Board approve the appropriation of $39,391 from the 
Redevelopment Agency Housing Set-Aside Fund unappropriated reserves 
to cover the $39,391 loan to Transition House as a contingency in the 
event that Fiscal Year 2011 HOME funds are not awarded; 

D. That the Agency Board approve and authorize the Deputy Director to 
negotiate and execute, subject to approval as to form by Agency Counsel, 
a loan in the amount of $150,000 to Mom's LP in Redevelopment Agency 
Housing Set-Aside funds for rehabilitation of existing units on the property;  

E. That the Agency Board approve the appropriation of $150,000 from the 
Redevelopment Agency Housing Set-Aside Fund unappropriated reserves 
to cover the loan to Mom's LP; and 

F. That the Agency Board consent to the additional subordination of the 
replacement affordability control covenant to a new Montecito Bank and 
Trust permanent loan and find that that there is no reasonably available 
and economically feasible alternative for financing this project without the 
additional subordination, and authorize the Deputy Director to execute the 
subordination subject to approval as to form by Agency Counsel. 

3/23/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 3 



 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

10. Subject:  Appeal Of The Planning Commission Approval Of 803 North 
Milpas Street (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council deny the appeal of Rick Feldman, uphold the 
Planning Commission approval and re-affirm the findings in Resolution 043-09 of 
the application of Jarrett Gorin, agent for Milpas Street LLC, for a Tentative 
Subdivision Map, the Development Plan, and the Modification for a 19,886 
square-foot mixed-use development. 
  

 
 
COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

11. Subject: Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, 
Employee Relations Manager, regarding negotiations with the Police Officers 
Association, the Police Managers Association, the General Bargaining Unit, the 
Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Units, the Firefighters Association, the Hourly 
Bargaining Unit, and the Supervisory Employees Association, and regarding 
discussions with unrepresented management and confidential employees about 
salaries and fringe benefits.  

Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

  

RECESS 
EVENING SESSION 

3/23/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 4 



 

EVENING SESSION 
 
 
RECONVENE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

12. Subject:  Community Development And Human Services Committee 
Funding Recommendations For Fiscal Year 2011 And Housing And Urban 
Development Consolidated Action Plan (610.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve the funding recommendations of the Community Development 

and Human Services Committee for Fiscal Year 2011 Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) and Human Services funds; 

B. Authorize the Community Development Director to negotiate and execute 
agreements implementing the funding recommendations, subject to the 
review and approval of the City Attorney;  

C. Authorize the City Administrator to sign all necessary documents to submit 
the City's 2010-2014 Consolidated Plan and 2010 Action Plan to the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD); and 

D. Remove the Third Priority for Human Services funding applications 
(programs that seek to enhance the quality of life of persons whose basic 
needs are already met). 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

3/23/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 5 



PROCLAMATION

NAI7ONAL LAND SURVEYOR’S WEEK
.Warch 231 213W

WHIR 4 , the h,morahle ad J!&orie profes on of s veyleg has been
yEnee the nr- m[ ofe lEzoton. From the rope stre.tchc, oft

Egyot. U) the romeo Empire and into motler,t .to•iety. the .eorewr hs bee, rot

essenati part of hwwtn ttew!optneet; oett

WIIEREA 5, the lt’e,ted prefi.iooaI laod .mrefl,r i., tqe qnatheed to
roh tl? dootemm,es ‘noJ, and other fopslon y’ectsswy to esmblish the
toeetb,n of lend bound ci ,. ThL, eettts that the lend ,,,er•sproj,e, lines toil?
be propetly ortd eonecrly ,narked on the protrnd; and

WFIEREA 5- ,any .,eode• ore p,sitletl throngh the of .ophiric.ated
sqatpment and e.h,tiqet .to:h ee .eetotlEte—bonse cetnote stnsng devises tend
todetnated po.tit½nin ,ete,[er]n ree,rtth,ts tentlytoitteg C 4)ent; and

WiEltE4S. the modern ptofetonal ,,eyar t•. often i rotoed in pesrAdhsg (‘the,
.,ectUe .rneh a., Phmgcamteoy. tW.c and lto*ogrcph. The peofessonai

Is able to occrotely ,neasre the hnttl t,ml detlop tnap. phls end
rtpots Joe .ntat V osefid pusposes. and

WHERE] S. thering the Colonial Fee and the earl, bts of the Lheikt( Slates
stoop leaders of our ottenery sertoti ems ttn&’ their fèBer,e to i:ens lnt toere ereety
engttgol as sur,epors at some pole to th1r tosreer. They tndade reuge
Washington, Thonos Jefferson and Abraham Lineolt,.

NOIV THEREFOgE, 1. HELENE .&CflPQEDER, by virtue of the onthttrity
rotted Its toe as 3thyor oft/to (Vty tf Studs Barhura, C fornia, do hereby prodeite
the week of Mon,h 2J-2 2010 as 4IWh4L lAND SUR VEFOKS WEEK in
the City of .Thttta Barbara

‘N WITNESS WIERROF, I h.v he,eV, se, my Itond ,tsi
easted the fliftisal Seal of the fl of Sante Baro, C,thsrnio. to
he’ oxed this 23 day •Mureh 2930. -

HELENE SCHNEIDER



 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING 
MARCH 8, 2010 

3714-3744 STATE STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Grant House called the meeting to order at 1:45 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Frank Hotchkiss, Michael Self, Mayor Pro Tempore House. 
Councilmembers absent:  Dale Francisco, Bendy White, Das Williams, Mayor Helene 
Schneider. 
Staff present:  Assistant City Administrator/Community Development Director Paul 
Casey, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley. 
 
Note:  While there was not a quorum of the Council in attendance, those that were 
present continued with the scheduled site visit. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak. 

NOTICES 

The City Clerk has on Thursday, March 4, 2010, posted this agenda in the Office of the 
City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City Hall, and 
on the Internet. 

SITE VISIT 

Subject:  3714 - 3744 State Street 

Recommendation:  That Council make a site visit to the property located at 
3714 - 3744 State Street, which is the subject of an appeal hearing scheduled for 
March 9, 2010, at 2:00 p.m. 
 

(Cont’d) 

3/8/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 



Subject:  3714 - 3744 State Street (Cont’d) 
 
Speakers: 
        - Staff:  Project Planner Allison De Busk. 
        - Applicant:  Greg Parker. 
 
Discussion: 
 Staff gave a brief description of the project.  The Council walked the project site.  

The applicant provided additional details about the project. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore House adjourned the meeting at 2:15 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
GRANT HOUSE  BRENDA ALCAZAR, CMC 
MAYOR PRO TEMPORE  DEPUTY CITY CLERK 
 

3/8/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 



 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
March 9, 2010 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m.  (The Finance 
Committee and Ordinance Committee, which ordinarily meet at 12:30 p.m., did not meet 
on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Schneider. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House, Michael Self, 
Bendy White, Das Williams (2:01 p.m.), Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley, 
Deputy City Clerk Brenda Alcazar. 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS  
 
1.  Subject:  Proclamation Declaring March 7, 2010, As Arbor Day (120.04)   
 

Action:  Proclamation presented to Kerry Methner, President of the Santa 
Barbara Beautiful Board of Directors, who introduced the Arbor Day Poster 
Contest winners and school officials.   

 
2.  Subject:  Proclamation Declaring March 2010 As Colon Cancer Awareness 

Month (120.04)   
 

Action:  Proclamation presented to Judy Corliss and Sally Jordan, representing 
Santa Barbara Cottage Hospital.   

 

3/9/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 



 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
Speakers:  Kenneth Loch; Ruth Wilson; Patrick Gregston and Kevin Barron, Gigabit 
Santa Barbara; David Daniel Diaz; Kate Smith.  
 
ITEM REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
Councilmember House stated he would abstain from voting on the following item due to 
a potential conflict of interest related to his residence, which is located within the 
Wildland Fire Suppression Assessment District.  Councilmembers Hotchkiss and White 
stated they would also abstain from voting on this item, as they may reside within the 
District.  
 
6.  Subject:  Agreement With SCI Consulting Group For Engineering Services To 

Renew The Wildland Fire Suppression Assessment District (290.00)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Fire Chief, subject to approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to negotiate and execute a five-year professional 
services agreement with SCI Consulting Group (SCI) in the amount of $34,375, 
which includes a 10% contingency, for the purpose of providing engineering 
services necessary for the annual renewal of the Wildland Fire Suppression 
Assessment District (WFSAD). 

 
Speakers: 

Staff:  City Attorney Stephen Wiley. 
 

Documents: 
March 9, 2010, report from the Fire Chief. 

 
Motion: 

Councilmember Williams/Francisco to approve the recommendation; 
Agreement No. 23,308.  

Vote: 
Unanimous voice vote (Abstentions:  Councilmembers Hotchkiss, House, 
White).  

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 3 - 5 and 7 - 13)  
 
The titles of the resolutions related to the Consent Calendar were read. 
 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Williams/House to approve the Consent Calendar as 
recommended. 

Vote: 
Unanimous roll call vote.  

 

3/9/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 



 

3.  Subject:  Minutes    
 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the regular meeting of February 23, 2010. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation.  

 
4.  Subject:  Records Destruction For Community Development Department 

(160.06)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records 
Held by the Community Development Department in the Housing and 
Redevelopment Division. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 10-010 (March 9, 2010, 
report from the Assistant City Administrator/Community Development Director; 
proposed resolution).   

 
5.  Subject:  Records Destruction For Waterfront Department (160.06)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records 
Held by the Waterfront Department in the Administration Division. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 10-011 (March 9, 2010, 
report from the Waterfront Director; proposed resolution).   

 
7.  Subject:  Contract For Construction Of Alisos Street Sidewalk Access Ramps 

(530.04)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Talcal Engineering, Inc. (Talcal), in the amount of 

$145,015, for construction of the Alisos Street Sidewalk Access Ramps 
(Project), Bid No. 3597; and 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Talcal in 
the amount of $145,015, and approve expenditures up to $14,500 to cover 
any cost increases that may result from contract change orders for extra 
work and differences between estimated bid quantities and actual 
quantities measured for payment. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Contract No. 23,309 (March 9, 2010, 
report from the Public Works Director).   

 

3/9/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 



 

8.  Subject:  Contract For Construction Of Eastside Sidewalk Access Ramps 
(530.04)    

 
Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Draper Construction (Draper), in the amount of 

$88,675.75, for construction of the Eastside Sidewalk Access Ramps 
(Project), Bid No. 3598; and 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Draper in 
the amount of $88,675.75, and approve expenditures up to $8,900.00 to 
cover any cost increases that may result from contract change orders for 
extra work and differences between estimated bid quantities and actual 
quantities measured for payment. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Contract No. 23,310 (March 9, 2010, 
report from the Public Works Director).   

 
9.  Subject:  GeoSyntec Contract For Research Into Landfill Area At Garden And 

Montecito Streets (630.01)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Finance Director to approve a 
change order in the amount of $12,700, for a contract total of $36,400 with 
Geosyntec Consultants, Inc., for the development of a final report on the old 
landfill area at Garden and Montecito Streets as requested by the Central Coast 
Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (March 9, 2010, report from the Interim 
Finance Director).   

 
10.  Subject:  Purchase Order For Fire Department Breathing Air Compressor 

(520.03)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council find it in the best interest of the City to waive the 
bidding process as provided in Municipal Code Section 4.52.070(l) and authorize 
the General Services Manager to issue a purchase order to Bauer Compressors 
in the amount of $50,144.18 to replace the Fire Department’s main breathing air 
compressor. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (March 9, 2010, report from the Fire 
Chief).   

 

3/9/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 



 

NOTICES  
 
11.  The City Clerk has on Thursday, March 4, 2010, posted this agenda in the Office 

of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet.   

 
12.  Received a notification advising of a vacancy created on the Santa Barbara 

Metropolitan Transit District Board with the death of Member Sharon Anderson, 
and letters of resignation from Housing Authority Commissioner Stanley Eisele, 
and Parks and Recreation Commissioner Daniel Hochman; the vacancies will be 
part of the next City Advisory Group recruitment.   

 
13.  Cancellation of the regular Redevelopment Agency meeting of March 9, 2010.   
 

This concluded the Consent Calendar.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS  
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
 
14.  Subject:  Participation In The Santa Barbara County Municipal Financing 

Program (California AB 811) (150.04)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution Approving County of Santa 

Barbara Resolution of Intention, Consenting to Participation in Contractual 
Assessment Program and Approving the Financing of Installation of 
Distributed Generation Renewable Energy Sources, and Energy Efficiency 
and Water Efficiency Improvements Within the Incorporated Area of the 
City; and 

B. Authorize the City Administrator to execute a cooperative agreement to 
implement an AB 811 Contractual Assessment Program with the County 
of Santa Barbara. 

 
Documents: 
      - March 9, 2010, report from the City Administrator. 
      - Proposed Resolution. 
      - March 9, 2010, PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
The title of the resolution was read. 

 
(Cont’d) 

3/9/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 



 

14. (Cont’d) 
 

Speakers: 
      - Staff:  Assistant to the City Administrator Nina Johnson, Administrative 

Analyst Lori Pedersen.   
      - County of Santa Barbara:  Chris Rich, County Executive Office. 
      - Members of the Public:  Lindsey Taggart, Community Environmental 

Council; Charlie Eckberg.   
 

Motion:   
Councilmembers Williams/House to approve the recommendations; 
Resolution No. 10-012; Agreement No. 23,311.   

Vote:  
Unanimous voice vote.  

 
RECESS  
 
3:20 p.m. - 3:33 p.m.  Councilmember House and City Administrator Armstrong were 
absent when the Council reconvened.  Assistant City Administrator Paul Casey was 
present.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
15.  Subject:  Appeal Of The City Planning Commission’s Certification Of An 

Environmental Impact Report And Project Approval For 3714-3744 State Street 
(Sandman Inn Redevelopment Project) (640.07)    

 
Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Certify the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Sandman Inn 

Redevelopment Project;  
B. Deny the appeal of Citizens Planning Association and Allied 

Neighborhoods Association; 
C. Uphold the Planning Commission approval of the development at 

3714-3744 State Street; and 
D. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Denying the Appeal of the City Planning Commission’s 
Certification of an Environmental Impact Report and Project Approval for 
Development Located at 3714-3744 State Street (Sandman Inn 
Redevelopment Project). 

 
Documents: 
      - March 9, 2010, report from the Assistant City Administrator/Community 

Development Director. 
      - Proposed Resolution. 
 

(Cont’d) 

3/9/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 



 

15. (Cont’d) 
 
Documents (Cont’d): 
      - Affidavit of Publication. 
      - March 9, 2010, ERRATA for the Sandman Inn Redevelopment Project 

Final EIR, submitted by Staff. 
      - March 9, 2010, PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
      - March 3, 2010, letter from Citizens Planning Association of Santa Barbara 

County, Inc. 
      - March 9, 2010, document entitled "Summary of Key Issues in CPA’s 

Sandman Appeal," submitted by Marc Chytillo. 
      - March 9, 2010, letter from Allied Neighborhoods Association. 
      - January 31, 2010, letter from Paula Westbury. 
      - February 28, 2010, letter from Paula Westbury. 
      - March 9, 2010, email communications from Patricia Hiles and Jim and 

Ginger Peterson. 
      - March 9, 2010, letters from Debbie Cox Bultan, Coastal Housing Coalition, 

and League of Women Voters of Santa Barbara. 
      - March 9, 2010, Request to Speak forms submitted by Bill Marks, Patricia 

Hiles, Rodney Utt, Brian Johnson, Steve Cushman, Debbie Cox Bultan, 
John Holehouse, Wendy Read and Randy Glick, read into the record by 
Mayor Schneider. 

 
The title of the resolution was read. 

 
Public Comment Opened: 

3:35 p.m. 
 
Councilmember House entered the meeting at 3:36 p.m. 
 

Speakers: 
      - Staff:  Project Planner Allison De Busk, City Attorney Stephen Wiley, 

Project Planner Melissa Hetrick, City Planner Bettie Weiss. 
      - Consultant to the City:  Joe Gibson, Impact Sciences. 
      - Planning Commission:  Commissioner Bruce Bartlett. 
      - Appellants:  Marc Chytillo, Attorney. 
      - Applicant:  Greg Parker, Investec. 
      - Members of the Public:  David Peterson, McDonalds; Connie Hannah, 

League of Women Voters of Santa Barbara; Jean Holmes, Grove Lane 
Area Neighborhood Association; Judy Rattray; Paul Hernadi, Citizens 
Planning Association; Cathie McCammon, Allied Neighborhoods 
Association; Mickey Flacks; Bill Pintard; Karen Chackel; Patrick Smith; 
Hamish Marshall; Ozzie Johnston; Justin Maxwell. 

 
(Cont’d) 

 

3/9/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 



 

15. (Cont’d) 
 
Public Comment Closed: 

5:49 p.m.   
 

Motion: 
Councilmembers Williams/House to approve the recommendations. 

 
Amendment Motion: 

Councilmembers Williams/House to approve recommendations A - C and 
direct staff to return to the Council with a revised resolution of the findings 
by March 30. 

Vote on Amendment Motion: 
Unanimous voice vote. 

 
RECESS  
 
Mayor Schneider recessed the meeting at 6:41 p.m. in order for the Council to 
reconvene in closed session for Agenda Item Nos. 16 - 18, and stated that no 
reportable action is anticipated.  
 
CLOSED SESSIONS  
 
16.  Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation (160.03)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Valley Slurry 
Seal Company v. City of Santa Barbara, et. al., SBSC Case Number 1341521. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

 
Documents: 

March 9, 2010, report from the City Attorney. 
 

Time: 
6:45 p.m. - 7:25 p.m. 

 
No report made.   

 

3/9/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 



 

17.  Subject:  Conference With Real Property Negotiator (330.03)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider instructions to 
its negotiators regarding the possible lease of property owned by the City, 
commonly known as 130 Harbor Way (APN 045-250-11).  Instructions to 
negotiations will direct staff regarding the price and terms of payment of a 
possible lease of the City-owned property with the Santa Barbara Yacht Club for 
a 67,500 square-foot ground lease.  Negotiations are held pursuant to the 
authority of Section 54956.8 of the Government Code.  City Negotiators are:  
John Bridley, Waterfront Director, Scott Riedman, Waterfront Business Manager, 
and Sarah Knecht, Assistant City Attorney.  Negotiators for Lessee are Robert 
Duncan and Tony Papa, Representatives of the Yacht Club, tenant.  Under 
Negotiation: Price and terms of payment of a possible ground lease. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

 
Documents: 

March 9, 2010, joint report from the Waterfront Director and City Attorney. 
 

Time: 
7:25 p.m. - 7:40 p.m. 

 
No report made.   

 
18.  Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6 to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, 
Employee Relations Manager, regarding negotiations with the Police Officers 
Association, the Police Managers Association, the General Bargaining Unit, the 
Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Units, the Firefighters Association, the Hourly 
Bargaining Unit, and the Supervisory Employees Association, and regarding 
discussions with unrepresented management and confidential employees about 
salaries and fringe benefits. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

 
Documents: 

March 9, 2010, report from the Assistant City Administrator/Administrative 
Services Director. 

 
Time: 

7:40 p.m. - 8:30 p.m. 
 

No report made.   
 

3/9/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 



 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 8:30 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  BRENDA ALCAZAR, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK 
 

3/9/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 10 



1 

ORDINANCE NO.  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING SECTION 2.08.020 OF THE 
SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE AND 
ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR THE APPOINTMENT 
AND SERVICE OF A YOUTH MEMBER TO THE PARKS 
AND RECREATION COMMISSION. 

 
 
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION ONE.  Section 2.08.020 of Chapter 2.08 of Title 2 of the Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code is amended to read as follows: 
 
2.08.020 Enumeration and Index. 
 
 A. BOARD OF AIRPORT COMMISSIONERS:  The appointment of members and their 

function is delineated in Chapter 18.44 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code and Section 812 of 

Article VIII of the City Charter. 

 B. ARCHITECTURAL BOARD OF REVIEW:  The appointment of members and their 

function is delineated in Chapter 22.68 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code and Section 814 of 

Article VIII of the City Charter. 

 C. BOARD OF CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSIONERS:  The appointment of members and 

their function is delineated in Section 808 of Article VIII of the City Charter. 

 D. BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS:  The appointment of members and their 

function is delineated in Section 811 of Article VIII of the City Charter and Chapter 17.06 of the 

Santa Barbara Municipal Code. 

 E. LIBRARY BOARD:  The appointment of members and their function is delineated in 

Section 807 of Article VIII of the City Charter. 

 F. PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION:  The appointment of members and their 

function is delineated in Section 809 of Article VIII of the City Charter. 



2 

 G. BOARD OF FIRE AND POLICE PENSION COMMISSIONERS:  The appointment of 

members and their function is delineated in Section 815 of Article VIII of the City Charter. 

 H. PLANNING COMMISSION:  The appointment of members and their function is 

delineated in Section 806 of Article VIII of the City Charter. 

 I. BOARD OF FIRE AND POLICE COMMISSIONERS: The appointment of members 

and their function is delineated in Section 816 of Article VIII of the City Charter. 

 J. BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS:  The appointment of members and their 

function is delineated in Section 813 of Article VIII of the City Charter. 

 
SECTION TWO.  Section 809 of the City Charter allows for the appointment of a person under 
the age of eighteen (18) to the Parks and Recreation Commission (a “youth member.”)  This 
ordinance supplements the provisions of Article VIII of the City Charter as it concerns the 
nomination, appointment, and service of any person who is appointed as a youth member to 
serve on the Parks and Recreation Commission. 
 

 A. PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION - APPOINTMENT AND SERVICE.  

Members of the Parks and Recreation Commission are appointed and serve terms in office as 

provided in Article VIII of the City Charter.  In general, members of the Parks and Recreation 

Commission are appointed and serve their terms of office in accordance with Section 802 of the 

City Charter.  Notwithstanding the eligibility requirements specified in Section 802 of the City 

Charter, Section 809 of the City Charter, as amended by the voters of the City in November 

2009, allows one (1) member of the Parks and Recreation Commission to be an individual of age 

sixteen (16) years or older.  The City Council may, but is not required to, appoint a youth 

member to the Parks and Recreation Commission. 



3 

 B. PERSONS UNDER THE AGE OF EIGHTEEN (18) - APPOINTMENT AND 

SERVICE.  The City Council chooses to consider applicants for appointment as a youth 

member of the Parks and Recreation Commission in the following manner: 

  1. The application process for a youth applicant shall follow the process applicable to 

other applicants for membership on the Commission (as specified in Article VIII of the City 

Charter and supplemented by resolution of the City Council), except as otherwise provided in 

this ordinance. 

  2. A youth applicant need not be eighteen (18) years of age at the time of appointment 

or during his or her term in office. 

  3.   A youth applicant shall be a resident of the City of Santa Barbara and a citizen of the 

United States at the time of appointment and during his or her term in office. 

  4. Reaching the age of eighteen (18) shall not disqualify a person appointed as a youth 

member on the Commission from continuing to serve the balance of his or her term in office. 

  5. If a vacancy is created by the resignation, disqualification, or removal of a youth 

member on the Commission, the City Council may, but is not required to, appoint a youth 

applicant to the vacant position on the Commission.   

  6. If a youth member on the Commission reaches the age of eighteen (18) during his or 

her term in office, the City Council may, but is not required to, appoint a youth applicant to 

another vacant position on the Commission. 

 



1 

ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING A LEASE WITH 
RICHONES, INC., DOING BUSINESS AS CHUCK’S 
WATERFRONT GRILL, LOCATED AT 113 HARBOR WAY, 
EFFECTIVE APRIL 22, 2010. 
 
 

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of the City 
of Santa Barbara, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a 
Lease with Richones, Inc., Doing Business As Chuck’s Waterfront Grill, Effective 
April 22, 2010, is hereby approved. 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  250.02 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 23, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Accounting Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2010 Interim Financial Statements For The Seven 

Months Ended January 31, 2010 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council accept the Fiscal Year 2010 Interim Financial Statements for the Seven 
Months Ended January 31, 2010. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The interim financial statements for the seven months ended January 31, 2010 (58.3% 
of the fiscal year) are attached.  The interim financial statements include budgetary 
activity in comparison to actual activity for the General Fund, Enterprise Funds, Internal 
Service Funds, and select Special Revenue Funds. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Interim Financial Statements for the Seven Months Ended 

January 31, 2010 
 
PREPARED BY: Rudolf J. Livingston, Accounting Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Interim Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



jhopwood
Text Box
Attachment







































CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MINUTES 
 

Special Meeting 
February 23, 2010 

Council Chamber, 735 Anacapa Street 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Helene Schneider called the joint meeting of the Agency and the City Council to 
order at 2:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Agency members present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House, Michael 
Self, Bendy White, Das Williams, Chair Schneider. 
Agency members absent:  None. 
Staff present:  Executive Director/Secretary James L. Armstrong, Agency Counsel 
Stephen P. Wiley, Deputy Director Paul Casey, Deputy City Clerk Susan Tschech. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Motion:   

Agency members House/Williams to approve the Consent Calendar as 
recommended.   

Vote:  
Unanimous roll call vote.  

 
1. Subject:  Redevelopment Agency Fiscal Year 2010 Interim Financial Statements 

For The Six Months Ended December 31, 2009  (7) 
 

Recommendation:  That the Redevelopment Agency Board accept the 
Redevelopment Agency Fiscal Year 2010 Interim Financial Statements for the 
Six Months Ended December 31, 2009.   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (February 23, 2010, report from the 
Interim Fiscal Officer).  

 

2/23/2010 Santa Barbara Redevelopment Agency Minutes Page 1 



ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chair Schneider adjourned the meeting at 7:04 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA SANTA BARBARA 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
 
 
 
              
HELENE SCHNEIDER SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
CHAIR DEPUTY CITY CLERK 
 

2/23/2010 Santa Barbara Redevelopment Agency Minutes Page 2 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MINUTES 
 

Regular Meeting 
March 2, 2010 

Council Chamber, 735 Anacapa Street 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Helene Schneider called the joint meeting of the Agency and the City Council to 
order at 2:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Agency members present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House, Michael 
Self, Bendy White, Das Williams, Chair Schneider. 
Agency members absent:  None. 
Staff present:  Executive Director/Secretary James L. Armstrong, Agency Counsel 
Stephen P. Wiley, Deputy Director Paul Casey, Housing and Redevelopment Manager 
Brian Bosse, City Clerk Services Manager Cynthia M. Rodriguez. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 1 and 2) 
 
Motion: 

Agency/Councilmembers House/Francisco to approve the Consent Calendar as 
recommended. 

Vote: 
Unanimous roll call vote.  
 

1.  Subject:  Minutes  (5) 
 

Recommendation: That the Redevelopment Agency Board waive the reading and 
approve the minutes of the regular meeting of February 9, 2010.   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation.   

 

3/2/2010 Santa Barbara Redevelopment Agency Minutes Page 1 



2.  Subject:  Contract For Design Services For Concrete Structural Upgrades To 
 Parking Structures 2, 9 And 10 (550.05/6)   
 
 Recommendation: 

A.  That the Redevelopment Agency (RDA) Board authorize the expenditure 
of $121,000 for design and engineering services for Structural Upgrades 
to Parking Structures 2, 9 and 10 (Project);  

B.  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a professional 
services contract with Watry Design, Inc. (Watry), in the amount of 
$82,715, for design services for the Project, and authorize the Public 
Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $8,285 for extra services 
of Watry that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; 
and  

C.  Adopt by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Approving and Adopting the Findings Required by Health 
and Safety Code Section 33445 for the Funding of Capital Improvements 
to Redevelopment Agency Owned Parking Structures 2, 9 and 10.   

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Council Contract No. 23,307 and 
Resolution No. 10-008 (March 2, 2010, joint report from the Deputy 
Director/Assistant City Administrator and Public Works Director; proposed 
Council resolution; February 28, 2010, letter from Paula Westbury).   

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chair Schneider adjourned the meeting at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA SANTA BARBARA 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
 
 
 
              
HELENE SCHNEIDER CYNTHIA M. RODRIGUEZ, CMC 
CHAIR CITY CLERK SERVICES MANAGER 
 

3/2/2010 Santa Barbara Redevelopment Agency Minutes Page 2 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 26, 2010 
 
TO: Redevelopment Agency Board 
 
FROM: Accounting Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Redevelopment Agency Fiscal Year 2010 Interim Financial 

Statements For The Seven Months Ended January 31, 2010 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That the Redevelopment Agency Board accept the Redevelopment Agency Fiscal Year 
2010 Interim Financial Statements for the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2010. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The interim financial statements for the seven months ended January 31, 2010 (58.3% 
of the fiscal year) are attached.  The interim financial statements include budgetary 
activity in comparison to actual activity for the Redevelopment Agency’s General, 
Housing, and Capital Projects Funds. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Redevelopment Agency Interim Financial Statements for the 

Seven Months Ended January 31, 2010 
 
PREPARED BY: Rudolf J. Livingston, Accounting Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Interim Fiscal Officer 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Attachment

FISCAL YEAR 2010

FOR THE SEVEN MONTHS

ENDED JANUARY 31, 2010

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

OF THE

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
General Fund

Interim Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Encumbrances
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2010 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

Annual Year-to-date Encum- Remaining Percent of 
Budget Actual  brances Balance Budget

Revenues:
Incremental Property Taxes 16,337,400$           9,399,263$      -$                   6,938,137$             57.53%
Investment Income 264,700                  115,550           -                     149,150                  43.65%
Interest Loans 5,000                      29,579             -                     (24,579)                   591.58%
Rents 48,000                    24,066             -                     23,934                    50.14%

   Total Revenues 16,655,100             9,568,458        -                     7,086,642                57.45%

Use of Fund Balance 4,197,643               2,448,611        -                     -                             58.33%
   Total Sources 20,852,743$           12,017,069$    -$                   7,086,642$             57.63%

  
Expenditures:    

Material, Supplies & Services:  
Office Supplies & Expense 3,000$                    774$               -$                   2,226$                    25.80%
Mapping, Drafting & Presentation 250                         -                      -                     250                         0.00%
Janitorial & Hshld Supplies 100                         -                      -                     100                         0.00%
Minor Tools 100                         -                      -                     100                         0.00%
Special Supplies & Expenses 5,000                      830                 -                     4,170                      16.60%
Building Materials 100                         -                      -                     100                         0.00%
Equipment Repair 1,000                      651                 -                     349                         65.10%
Professional Services - Contract 787,155                  360,192           8,491             418,472                  46.84%
Legal Services 154,508                  101,453           -                     53,055                    65.66%
Engineering Services 20,000                    9,828              -                     10,172                    49.14%
Non-Contractual Services 12,000                    3,145              -                     8,855                      26.21%
Meeting & Travel 7,500                      198                 -                     7,302                      2.64%
Mileage Reimbursement 300                         -                      -                     300                         0.00%
Dues, Memberships, & Licenses 13,500                    13,373             -                     127                         99.06%
Publications 1,500                      540                 -                     960                         36.00%
Training 7,500                      415                 -                     7,085                      5.53%
Advertising 2,000                      41                   -                     1,959                      2.05%
Printing and Binding 3,000                      -                      -                     3,000                      0.00%
Postage/Delivery 1,000                      698                 -                     302                         69.80%
Non-Allocated Telephone 500                         -                      -                     500                         0.00%
Vehicle Fuel 1,300                      536                 -                     764                         41.23%
Equipment Rental 500                         -                      -                     500                         0.00%

    Total Supplies & Services 1,021,813               492,674           8,491             520,648                  49.05%

Allocated Costs:
Desktop Maint Replacement 25,207                    14,704             -                     10,503                    58.33%
GIS Allocations 4,785                      2,791              -                     1,994                      58.33%
Building Maintenance 1,785                      1,041              -                     744                         58.32%
Planned Maintenance Program 6,752                      3,939              -                     2,813                      58.34%
Vehicle Replacement 5,323                      3,105              -                     2,218                      58.33%
Vehicle Maintenance 4,396                      2,564              -                     1,832                      58.33%
Telephone 2,908                      1,696              -                     1,212                      58.32%
Custodial 3,674                      2,143              -                     1,531                      58.33%
Communications 4,663                      2,720              -                     1,943                      58.33%
Property Insurance 8,142                      4,750              -                     3,392                      58.34%
Allocated Facilities Rent 5,746                      3,352              -                     2,394                      58.34%
Overhead Allocation 693,628                  404,617           -                     289,011                  58.33%

   Total Allocated Costs 767,009                  447,422           -                     319,587                  58.33%

Special Projects 7,636,577               340,466           37,164           7,258,947               4.95%
Transfers 9,759,023               3,284,397        -                     6,474,626               33.65%
Grants 1,545,028               388,094           131,886         1,025,048               33.66%
Equipment 8,070                      212                 -                     7,858                      2.63%
Fiscal Agent Charges 11,500                    5,526              -                     5,974                      48.05%
Appropriated Reserve 103,723                  -                      -                     103,723                  0.00%

   Total Expenditures 20,852,743$           4,958,791$      177,541$       15,716,411$            24.63%

Page 1



REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Housing Fund

Interim Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Encumbrances
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2010 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

Annual Year-to-date Encum- Remaining Percent of 
Budget Actual  brances Balance Budget

Revenues:
Incremental Property Taxes 4,084,400$    2,349,816$    -$                   1,734,584$    57.53%
Investment Income 150,000         44,038           -                     105,962         29.36%
Interest Loans 160,000         158,355         -                     1,645             98.97%
Miscellaneous -                     3,091             -                     (3,091)            100.00%

   Total Revenues 4,394,400      2,555,300      -                     1,839,100       58.15%

Use of Fund Balance 2,603,567      1,518,690      -                     -                     58.33%

   Total Sources 6,997,967$    4,073,990$    -$                   1,839,100$    58.22%

  
Expenditures:   

Material, Supplies & Services:  
Office Supplies & Expense 1,800$           738$              -$                   1,062$           41.00%
Special Supplies & Expenses 1,800             747                -                     1,053             41.50%
Equipment Repair 500                458                -                     42                  91.60%
Professional Services - Contract 721,383         409,585         3,600             308,198         57.28%
Legal Services 2,000             -                     -                     2,000             0.00%
Non-Contractual Services 2,000             1,447             -                     553                72.35%
Meeting & Travel 6,000             -                     -                     6,000             0.00%
Mileage Reimbursement 100                -                     -                     100                0.00%
Dues, Memberships, & Licenses 2,025             1,400             -                     625                69.14%
Publications 200                31                  -                     169                15.50%
Training 5,000             -                     -                     5,000             0.00%
Postage/Delivery 500                26                  -                     474                5.20%
Non-Allocated Telephone 500                -                     -                     500                0.00%
Equipment Rental 100                -                     -                     100                0.00%
    Total Supplies & Services 743,908         414,432         3,600             325,876         56.19%

Allocated Costs:
Desktop Maintenance Replacement 7,562             4,411             -                     3,151             58.33%
GIS Allocations 2,393             1,396             -                     997                58.34%
Building Maintenance 893                521                -                     372                58.34%
Planned Maintenance Program 4,001             2,334             -                     1,667             58.34%
Telephone 969                565                -                     404                58.31%
Custodial 1,867             1,089             -                     778                58.33%
Communications 2,897             1,690             -                     1,207             58.34%
Insurance 166                97                  -                     69                  58.43%
Allocated Facilities Rent 3,405             1,986             -                     1,419             58.33%
Overhead Allocation 181,432         105,835         -                     75,597           58.33%
   Total Allocated Costs 205,585         119,924         -                     85,661           58.33%

Transfers 829                484                -                     345                58.38%
Equipment 2,500             211                -                     2,289             8.44%
Housing Activity 5,328,855      2,528,628      -                     2,800,227      47.45%
Principal 470,000         470,000         -                     -                     100.00%
Interest 168,950         174,898         -                     (5,948)            103.52%
Fiscal Agent Charges 1,300             1,265             -                     35                  97.31%
Appropriated Reserve 76,040           -                     -                     76,040           0.00%

   Total Expenditures 6,997,967$    3,709,842$    3,600$           3,284,525$     53.06%

Page 2



REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Capital Projects Fund

Interim Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Encumbrances
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2010 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

Annual Year-to-date Encum- Remaining Percent of 
Budget Actual  brances Balance Budget

Revenues:
SB Trust for Historic Preservation 552,180$        522,180$         -$                   30,000$          94.57%
Fire Station #1 EOC Donations 6,000              6,000               -                     -                      100.00%
Fire Station #1 Remodel Donations -                      25,595             -                     (25,595)           100.00%
Transfers-In 2,243,621       1,933,228        -                     310,393          86.17%

   Total Revenues 2,801,801       2,487,003        -                     314,798           88.76%

Use of Fund Balance 12,208,909     7,121,829        -                     5,087,080       58.33%

   Total Sources 15,010,710$   9,608,832$      -$                   5,401,878$     64.01%

  
Expenditures:    

Finished
Fire Station #1 Remodel 377,482$        305,210$         145,640$       (73,368)$         119.44%
Fire Station #1 EOC 202,064          136,347           86,210           (20,493)           110.14%
Underground Tank Abatement 23,070            -                       -                     23,070            0.00%

Construction Phase
IPM - Sustainable Park Improvements 9,511              116                  9,511             (116)                101.22%
Carrillo Rec Center Restoration 2,200,000       182,044           2,017,956      -                      100.00%

Design Phase
Soil Remediation - 125 State St 550,000          1,041               156,306         392,653          28.61%

Planning Phase
Opportunity Acquisition Fund 366,500          -                       -                     366,500          0.00%
RDA Project Contingency Account 1,714,524       -                       -                     1,714,524       0.00%
Parking Lot Capital Improvements 192,621          94,927             82,162           15,532            91.94%
PD Locker Room Upgrade 7,525,483       72,452             -                     7,453,031       0.96%
Phase II - E Cabrillo Sidewalks 600,000          -                       -                     600,000          0.00%
Chase Palm Park Light/Electric 569,000          -                       -                     569,000          0.00%
Plaza Del Mar Restroom Renovation 212,000          -                       -                     212,000          0.00%
Pershing Park Restroom Renovation 120,000          -                       -                     120,000          0.00%
Housing Fund Contingency Account 348,455          -                       -                     348,455          0.00%

Total Expenditures 15,010,710$   792,137$         2,497,785$    11,720,788$   21.92%

Page 3



REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
RDA Bonds - Series 2001A

Interim Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Encumbrances
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2010 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

Annual Year-to-date Encum- Remaining Percent of 
Budget Actual  brances Balance Budget

Revenues:
Investment Income -$                    752$               -$                    (752)$              100.00%
Transfers-In -                      824,986          -                      (824,986)         100.00%

   Total Revenues -                      825,738          -                      (825,738)          100.00%

Use of Fund Balance 3,219,138       1,877,821       -                      1,341,317       58.33%
   Total Sources 3,219,138$     2,703,559$     -$                    515,579$        83.98%

  
Expenditures:    

Interest -$                    824,986$        -$                    (824,986)         100.00%

   Total Non-Capital Expenditures -                      824,986          -                      (824,986)         100.00%

Capital Outlay:
Finished

East Cabrillo Blvd Sidewalks 54,437$          24,224$          -$                    30,213$          44.50%

Construction Phase
Carrillo Rec Center Restoration 1,000,000       -                      1,000,000       -                      100.00%

Design Phase
Mission Creek Flood Control @ Depot 1,964,701       -                      -                      1,964,701       0.00%
Brinkerhoff Lighting 200,000          -                      20,157            179,843          10.08%

   Total Expenditures 3,219,138$     849,210$        1,020,157$     1,349,771$     58.07%

Page 4



REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
RDA Bonds - Series 2003A

Interim Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Encumbrances
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2010 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

Annual Year-to-date Encum- Remaining Percent of 
Budget Actual  brances Balance Budget

Revenues:
Investment Income -$                    4,617$            -$                   (4,617)$           100.00%
Transfers-In -                      525,215          -                     (525,215)         100.00%
Intergovernmental -                      73,519            -                     (73,519)           100.00%

   Total Revenues -                      603,351          -                     (603,351)          100.00%

Use of Fund Balance 20,198,900     11,782,634     -                     8,416,266       58.33%
   Total Sources  20,198,900$    12,385,985$    -$                    7,812,915$     61.32%

  
Expenditures:    

Interest -$                    525,215$        -$                   (525,215)$       100.00%
Arbitrage Rebate 440,000          -                      -                     440,000          0.00%

   Total Non-Capital Expenditures 440,000          525,215          -                     (85,215)           119.37%

Capital Outlay:
Finished

9082 Adams Parking Lot & Site Imprvmts 3,457$            3,457$            -$                   -$                    100.00%
8966 Anapamu Open Space Enhancements 2,464              -                      -                     2,464              0.00%
9055 Historic Railroad CAR 24,646            8,574              17,917           (1,845)             107.49%
7999 Fire Station #1 Remodel 40,015            60,589            -                     (20,574)           151.42%

Construction Phase
3179 IPM - Sustainable Park Improvements 94,909            11                   25,000           69,898            26.35%
8958 West Beach Pedestrian Improvements 2,565,901       1,105,008       1,117,999      342,894          86.64%
9007 Artist Workspace 612,042          63,702            17,328           531,012          13.24%
9071 West Downtown Improvement 3,143,824       985,974          1,777,133      380,717          87.89%
9091 Carrillo Rec Ctr Restoration 2,897,579       192,238          1,206,387      1,498,954       48.27%

Design Phase
8961 Plaza De La Guerra Infrastructure 2,282,158       150                 38,290           2,243,718       1.68%
9068 Westside Community Center 216,066          15,749            4,543             195,774          9.39%

Planning Phase
7911 Mission Creek Flood Control - Park Development 759,142          3,058              -                     756,084          0.40%
7662 Mission Creek Flood Control @ Depot 535,299          -                      -                     535,299          0.00%
7665 Helena Parking Lot Development 499,798          5,518              -                     494,280          1.10%
8984 Fire Department Administration 3,750,000       2,335              204,000         3,543,665       5.50%
8986 Chase Palm Park Restroom Renovation 186,600          -                      -                     186,600          0.00%
8987 Downtown Sidewalks 175,000          -                      -                     175,000          0.00%
8988 DP Structure #2, 9, 10 Improvements 150,000          -                      -                     150,000          0.00%
8989 Library Plaza Renovation 150,000          -                      -                     150,000          0.00%

71101 Chase Palm Park Wisteria Arbor 835,000          -                      1,545             833,455          0.19%

On-Hold Status
8962 Visitor Center Condo Purchase 500,000          -                      -                     500,000          0.00%
8964 Lower State Street Sidewalks 335,000          -                      -                     335,000          0.00%

Total Expenditures 20,198,900$   2,971,578$     4,410,142$    12,817,180$   36.55%

Page 5



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  660.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

JOINT COUNCIL AND REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 23, 2010 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 Chair and Boardmembers 
FROM: Housing and Redevelopment Division, Community Development 

Department 
SUBJECT: Increased Funding For Transition House Affordable Housing Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council and the Redevelopment Agency Board take the 
following actions regarding the “Mom’s Place” affordable housing project at 421 East Cota 
Street: 
 
A. That Council approve and authorize the Community Development Director to 

negotiate and execute, subject to approval as to form by the City Attorney, an 
amendment to a loan agreement with Transition House to, among other things, 
increase the loan amount by $170,000 in federal Home Investment Partnerships 
Program (HOME) funds for construction of new units on the property;   

B. That the Agency Board approve and authorize the Deputy Director to negotiate and 
execute, subject to approval as to form by Agency Counsel, a loan agreement with 
Transition House in the amount of $39,391 for construction of new units on the 
property as a contingency in the event that Fiscal Year 2011 HOME funds are not 
awarded; 

C. That the Agency Board approve the appropriation of $39,391 from the Redevelopment 
Agency Housing Set-Aside Fund unappropriated reserves to cover the $39,391 loan 
to Transition House as a contingency in the event that Fiscal Year 2011 HOME 
funds are not awarded; 

D. That the Agency Board approve and authorize the Deputy Director to negotiate and 
execute, subject to approval as to form by Agency Counsel, a loan in the amount of 
$150,000 to Mom’s LP in Redevelopment Agency Housing Set-Aside funds for 
rehabilitation of existing units on the property;  

E. That the Agency Board approve the appropriation of $150,000 from the 
Redevelopment Agency Housing Set-Aside Fund unappropriated reserves to cover 
the loan to Mom’s LP; and 



Joint Council and Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Increased Funding For Transition House Affordable Housing Project 
March 23, 2010 
Page 2 

F. That the Agency Board consent to the additional subordination of the replacement 
affordability control covenant to a new Montecito Bank and Trust permanent loan and 
find that that there is no reasonably available and economically feasible alternative for 
financing this project without the additional subordination, and authorize the Deputy 
Director to execute the subordination subject to approval as to form by Agency 
Counsel.  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
The City and Redevelopment Agency have provided three loans and one grant to 
Transition House over the past 11 years for various improvements to the Transition 
House facilities located at 421 East Cota Street.  The most recent loan was approved by 
Council on July 21, 2009.  Since that time, there have been changes to the Transition 
House proposed financial plan. Transition House estimates that it will lose 
approximately $2 million in funding previously identified. Half of this decrease is due to a 
loss of funding from the State’s Supportive Housing Program, and the other half is due 
to reductions in the value of low income housing tax credits expected to be awarded to 
the project. Transition House has taken a number of steps to compensate for the $2 
million loss of funds and has succeeded in limiting their request for additional funds from 
the City and Redevelopment Agency to $320,000. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
For 25 years, Transition House has provided food, shelter and services to homeless 
families in Santa Barbara. Transition House acquired an old warehouse located at 
434 East Ortega in 1992 and converted it to a family homeless shelter with ground-floor 
administrative offices and program space. In 1999, the family owners of the former 
Mom’s Restaurant sold their property at a discounted price to Transition House. This 
property included the Mom’s Restaurant building on Cota Street plus an adjacent 
modern mixed-use building at the corner of Olive and Cota with eight apartments 
located over ground-floor commercial space (renamed the Cordover Center after the 
organization’s original Executive Director, Jill Cordover). 
The Mom’s property on Cota Street and the family homeless shelter on Ortega Street 
are located on the same block and are connected via a driveway (see attached site 
plan). After acquiring the Mom’s property, Transition House was then able to embark on 
an ambitious plan to develop the properties as one cohesive campus that addresses the 
needs of homeless families in a comprehensive fashion. Transition House first created 
new space for offices and support services by converting the ground floor commercial 
space in the Cordover Center. This made available the ground-floor space in the family 
shelter on Ortega and enabled Transition House to devote that building exclusively to 
shelter use. Transition House renovated the shelter and reconfigured the space to give 
families more privacy and to increase the number of families served. 
Meanwhile, as vacancies arose in the eight apartments on the second floor of the 
Cordover Center, they were filled with client families that successfully completed 
Transition House programs and demonstrated readiness for more independent living. 



Joint Council and Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Increased Funding For Transition House Affordable Housing Project 
March 23, 2010 
Page 3 

As described below, the focus now shifts to the Mom’s Restaurant building, which has 
been leased during the interim to antiques and furniture merchants (Cominiche’s). 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Proposed Project 
Transition House plans to demolish the Mom’s Restaurant building and construct a new 
two-story mixed-use building with 9,700 square feet that will feature eight new 
apartments for client families and a 2,000 square foot infant care center and offices on 
the ground floor. The new building will include an elevator and a bridge connection to 
the adjacent Cordover Center building. The addition of the bridge connection will 
provide disabled access to all Transition House units.  With its location in a flood zone, 
the site area for the new building will be raised about three feet above grade and will 
include access ramps. The Cordover Center will also receive a new roof and repairs will 
be made to the eight existing apartments. 
The proposed eight units in the new building will include six 2-bedroom units with 850-
950 square feet and two 3-bedroom units with 1,070 square feet. When combined with 
the existing eight units, this will result in four 1-bedroom units, ten 2-bedroom units, and 
two 3-bedroom units. Rents will range from $437 to $1,050 per month, depending on 
size and income targeting. The units will be targeted exclusively to low and very-low 
income households. Six units will be targeted to households earning 30 percent of the 
Area Median Income (AMI). Eight units will be targeted to 50 percent AMI, and two units 
will be targeted to 60 percent AMI. 
The City’s Staff Hearing Officer and the City’s Architectural Board of Review have 
approved the project and the project’s design. Final construction drawings are expected 
to be completed soon in preparation for securing bids from contractors. Transition 
House hopes to secure an award of low income housing tax credits in June and start 
construction in September. 
Development Team 
In order to be eligible for tax credit financing, Transition House established Mom’s L.P., 
a California limited partnership, which consists of two general partners – Santa Barbara 
Housing Assistance Corporation and Garden Court, Inc.  Both entities serve as general 
partners in a number of affordable housing projects, including El Carrillo and Garden 
Court. Transition House will sell the land and existing buildings to Mom’s L.P., but will 
retain the option to purchase the land and buildings back after the first 10 years of the 
new project’s operation. 
The Housing Authority will assist Mom’s LP in managing construction of the new project, 
just as it assisted Transition House with the renovation of the Ortega family shelter. 
Artisan Court, the Housing Authority’s new affordable housing project currently under 
construction, is located directly across the street. The two projects share the same 
architecture team of Christine Pierron and Mark Wienke. 



Joint Council and Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Increased Funding For Transition House Affordable Housing Project 
March 23, 2010 
Page 4 

Project Financing 
Over the past 11 years, the City and Redevelopment Agency have provided the 
following financial assistance to the project, listed in chronological order: 
 

RDA loan for acquisition of the property $320,000 
RDA loan for predevelopment of the new Mom’s residential units $120,000 
HOME loan for construction of the new Mom’s residential units $680,000 
CDBG grant for rehabilitation of the existing Cordover units $100,000 

Council approved the $680,000 HOME loan to Transition House on July 21, 2009. As 
specified in the Council Agenda Report, Transition House prepared a financial plan for 
the project that was based on their 2009 application for low income housing tax credits. 
Unfortunately, their application was not selected for award. Competition for this program 
is extremely steep, and the Mom’s Place project was not as prepared to start 
construction as other competing projects. 
Transition House plans to submit a new application for the next round of low income 
housing tax credits. The financial plan has been revised considerably to address the 
$2,140,822 reduction in expected funding.  Part of the funding reduction is due to the 
loss of a $1,037,000 loan from the State’s Supportive Housing Program. State funds 
have since been frozen, and it appears the State will not be able to consider new loans 
for at least three years. The other reduction is the result of the loss of federal stimulus 
funding which was used last year to augment the value of the tax credits. New tax 
credits awarded in 2010 will not receive this augmentation benefit, resulting in a loss of 
$1,103,822 in the value to Transition House of the anticipated tax credit award.   
Additional Funds Needed 
Fortunately, Transition House has identified ways to cover all but $320,000 of the 
$2,140,822 funding shortfall through cost reductions and other funding sources. Cost 
reductions were realized through reducing the size of the building in response to input 
from the City’s Architectural Board of Review. Moreover, based on recent bid prices 
received by the City’s Housing Authority for the nearby Artisan Court project, Transition 
House lowered their estimates accordingly, resulting in further cost reductions of 
$351,822. 
Transition House succeeded in securing additional permanent financing for the project 
through a commercial bank loan from Montecito Bank and Trust (MBT) in the amount of 
$1,369,000. The MBT loan will be secured by the property in first position.  Critical to 
Transition House’s success in securing the loan is the anticipated award of eight 
project-based Section 8 units from the City’s Housing Authority. Under the Section 8 
program, federal funds are used to subsidize the difference between the fair market rent 
and what tenants can afford to pay. With the guarantee of receiving full fair market rent 
for these units, the bank is willing to make the loan to Transition House.  Transition 
House also secured a grant of $100,000 from the City’s CDBG Housing and 
Rehabilitation Loan Program.   



Joint Council and Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Increased Funding For Transition House Affordable Housing Project 
March 23, 2010 
Page 5 

For the remaining $320,000 of the $2,140,832 shortfall, Transition House requests 
additional funding from the City and Redevelopment Agency. For the new construction 
portion of the project, an additional $170,000 in HOME funds is requested and for the 
rehabilitation portion of the project, $150,000 in Redevelopment Agency housing set-
aside funds is requested. This would result in a combined subsidy of City and 
Redevelopment Agency funds that totals $1,540,000 for the 16 unit project, an amount 
that is consistent with City funding of other recent affordable housing projects in the 
City. 
The existing HOME loan for construction of the new residential units would be increased 
from $680,000 to $850,000, and the loan agreement would be amended accordingly. A 
new Redevelopment Agency loan in the amount of $150,000 would be used for the 
rehabilitation of the existing units. Agency and City funding of the increased HOME loan 
and the proposed new Redevelopment Agency loan would be subject to the condition 
that Mom’s LP secure an award of low income housing tax credits for the project. 
The Mom’s Place project is located outside of the boundaries of the Central City 
Redevelopment Project area.  The California Redevelopment Law provides that a 
redevelopment agency may use affordable housing set-aside funds outside a project 
area if the legislative body makes certain findings regarding use of the funds.  On 
September 16, 2008, the City Council and Agency Board adopted a joint resolution 
finding that the use of the Agency housing set-aside funds for the Transition House 
project would be of benefit to the Central City Redevelopment Project area. 
Subordination of City Covenant 
Transition House and the City executed an amended affordability control covenant in 
2009 when the Agency made its predevelopment loan. This document sets limits for the 
income of tenants and the rents to be charged by Transition House. The covenant will 
be replaced by a new covenant entered into with Mom’s LP and covering all sixteen 
affordable units. As is standard practice in such cases, the lender (MBT) and  perhaps 
the tax credit investors will require their deeds of trust securing their funding and 
regulatory agreements be given senior position on title in the unlikely event that the 
project defaults on repayment or otherwise. These entities may ask the City to 
subordinate the City’s affordability covenant to their deeds of trust.  
The City typically agrees to such subordination if the City is afforded the right to cure 
any default and take over the operation of the project. This means that if the Mom's LP 
project fails to make payments on the MBT loan, for example, the City will have a 
chance to pay the past-due amounts to the bank and stop the bank from foreclosing. 
This would protect the City’s investment in this affordable project by assuring continued 
affordability. If the City did not cure within a limited time, the bank could foreclose and 
the affordability controls would terminate. 
Since Agency housing set-aside funds constitute part of the financing, subordination of 
the City’s affordability covenant is subject to State redevelopment law. California Health 
and Safety Code Section 33334.14 requires that certain findings be made if affordability 
restrictions are to be subordinated. The key finding is that no other "economically 
feasible alternative" source of financing without the condition of subordination is 
available. That is clearly the case in this instance. State law also requires that the 



Joint Council and Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Increased Funding For Transition House Affordable Housing Project 
March 23, 2010 
Page 6 

subordination be subject to the right to cure the default and take over the property, thus 
preserving the affordability restrictions. The replacement affordability covenant will 
provide the City with this right. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
The City has $130,609 in federal HOME funds that are specifically earmarked for use by 
specially designated nonprofits known as Community Development Housing 
Organizations (CHDOs), and Transition House is one of the City’s three nonprofit 
organizations that meet federal CHDO requirements. Typically, HOME awards for the 
upcoming year are announced in January or February. However, this year, the City is 
still awaiting announcement of its Fiscal Year 2011 HOME award.  In the unlikely event 
HOME funds are not awarded, Agency Housing Set-Aside Fund reserves would be 
used to make up the $39,391 difference needed for the new construction portion of the 
project. 
The Redevelopment Agency has sufficient reserves in the Housing Set-Aside Fund to 
cover both the $150,000 needed for the rehabilitation portion of the project and the 
$39,391 possibly needed for the new construction (in the event the HOME funds are not 
awarded). 
On March 11, 2010, Council’s Finance Committee reviewed this financing request and 
recommended that Council and the Agency Board approve the financing and other 
actions described herein.  
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
The new construction portion of the project will feature photovoltaic panels on the roof, 
tankless water heaters for domestic water, low water consumption plumbing fixtures, 
and linoleum flooring and other finish materials with recycled content. The new 
construction has been designed with an interior court to allow for cross ventilation and 
natural light. 
The rehabilitation portion of the project will feature the conversion of single-pane 
windows to energy-efficient dual-pane windows, energy-efficient lighting fixtures, energy 
efficient appliances, and flow restrictors for kitchen and bathroom fixtures. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Letter from Transition House 

2. Site Location Map 
PREPARED BY: Brian Bosse, Housing and Redevelopment Manager/SK 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Community Development Director 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 

 
 







Shelter
Mom’s

Cordover
Center

Artisan Court



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  640.07 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 23, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appeal Of The Planning Commission Approval Of 803 North Milpas 

Street 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council deny the appeal of Rick Feldman, uphold the Planning Commission 
approval and re-affirm the findings in Resolution 043-09 of the application of Jarrett 
Gorin, agent for Milpas Street LLC, for a Tentative Subdivision Map, the Development 
Plan, and the Modification for a 19,886 square-foot mixed-use development.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
On November 5, 2009, the Planning Commission approved a mixed-use development 
located on the north-west corner of Milpas and De La Guerra Streets.  The project consists 
of eight mixed-use commercial and residential units, and one commercial condominium. A 
total of 26 parking spaces are proposed. 
 
An appeal was filed on November 16, 2009 (Attachment 1) that focuses on noticing, the 
approval of a parking modification and a curb extension at the corner of Milpas and De la 
Guerra Streets. The appellant has indicated that the central issue of this appeal is the curb 
extension’s effectiveness, if it is appropriate for the Milpas Street corridor and how staff 
implements Pedestrian Master Plan recommended pedestrian enhancements on projects. 
This report will address these concerns and why the Planning Commission determined the 
project was consistent with all applicable policies and ordinances. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The project consists of a development containing five mixed use residential/commercial 
condominiums, one live/work unit, two residential units and one commercial condominium.  
The development would be split among three buildings totaling 19,886 net square feet.  
The overall height of the proposed development would be between 37 feet and 38 feet, 6 
inches.  Parking would be located within eight two-car garages and on the interior of the lot 
for a total of 26 parking spaces.  Access to the garages and parking lot would be via a 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Planning Commission Approval Of 803 North Milpas Street 
March 23, 2010 
Page 2 

 

driveway from De la Guerra Street, located between two of the buildings.  Pedestrian 
access to the site would also be provided from Milpas Street.  A landscaped area would be 
provided in the northwest corner of the site, behind the open parking.  An area along the 
northern property line has been reserved for secured remediation equipment associated 
with the prior gas station, if required. 
 
The table below provides the location, unit numbers and sizes. Buildings 1 and 2 would 
front on Milpas Street, and are connected by second story decks, although there is no 
access from one building to the other.  Building 1 contains two mixed-use units and the 
commercial-only condominium, which would be sited on the corner of De la Guerra and 
Milpas Streets.  Building 2 contains three mixed-use units, each containing.  Building 3 
contains three units and fronts on De la Guerra Street.  Of these three units, two would be 
residential-only units and the third would include a deed restricted commercial space (live-
work unit), see Attachment 2, site plan and statistics. 
 
Building 
Number 

Location Unit Numbers & Type Size 

2 Residential/Commercial 
mixed-use units 

1,543 s.f. of residential w/340 s.f. 
commercial 

1 Milpas 

1 Commercial unit 1,138 s.f.  

2 Milpas Street 3 Residential/Commercial 
mixed-use units 

1,543 s.f. of residential w/340 s.f. 
commercial 

2 Residential Units 1,880 – 1,950 s.f. 3 De la Guerra Street 

1 live/work Unit 1,640 s.f. w/278 deed restricted 
office 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
Planning Commission Approval 
 
The project was reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on November 5, 
2009 by a vote of 5-0 (Attachment 3, Resolution 043-09). At an earlier hearing on 
August 20, 2009, staff stated that the project could be found consistent with all policies 
and ordinances except for the proposed sidewalk improvements on Milpas Street 
(Attachment 4, Minutes). Specifically, a portion of the proposed sidewalk improvements 
were not consistent with the dimensions in the Pedestrian Master Plan (PMP). While 
staff recommended to the Planning Commission that the applicant should meet the 
sidewalk dimensions stated in the PMP, staff stated that the Planning Commission had 
the discretion to reduce sidewalk dimensions. The Planning Commission concluded that 
the pedestrian improvements were inadequate and directed staff to work with the 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Planning Commission Approval Of 803 North Milpas Street 
March 23, 2010 
Page 3 

 

applicant to make adjustments. The area of the corner curb extension, proposed by the 
applicant, was not discussed as it provided adequate sidewalk improvements and also 
was one of the options stated in the PMP to enhance pedestrian safety for street 
crossing.  
 
At a Planning Commission lunch meeting on October 1, 2009, Transportation Planning 
Staff met with the Planning Commission to discuss implementation of the Pedestrian 
Master Plan (PMP) on the Milpas Corridor.  The Milpas sidewalk corridor is currently 
significantly narrower than what is recommended in the PMP, making sidewalk widening 
a challenge. Staff asked the Planning Commission for guidance regarding the degree of 
flexibility in applying the PMP sidewalk width dimensions. The Planning Commissioners 
concluded that the PMP guidelines should be followed as written.  
 
At the November 5, 2009 Planning Commission meeting, the applicant returned with a 
revised project that was consistent with the PMP (Attachment 4, Minutes). The project 
was approved by the Planning Commission at this hearing. There were no public 
comments on the project at either hearing.   
 
After the appeal of the Planning Commission was filed, the applicant and the appellant met 
to discuss the appeal issues. The main issue that arose for the appellant was the curb 
extension at the corner of Milpas and De la Guerra Streets. The project applicant decided 
to pursue a Substantial Conformity Determination request to remove the curb extension 
and provide a contribution to the City’s Access Ramp Program. On February 18, 2010, 
Staff presented the Substantial Conformity request to the Planning Commission, and 
received input from both the Commission and the public. Because the decision of a 
Substantial Conformity Determination rests with the Community Development Director, no 
action was taken.  
 
The majority of the Commissioners and members of the public did not support the removal 
of the curb extension and supported keeping it as part of the project. The two principal 
reasons for the lack of support to remove the curb extension from the project were the 
project's proximity to the schools, and pedestrian safety on a busy street. Staff received 
comments from the Superintendent of the Santa Barbara Schools, a member of the PTA 
and other citizens expressing a desire to retain the curb extensions given the large student 
population in the vicinity. Upon reviewing the applicant's request and public feedback, the 
Community Development Director denied the Substantial Conformity request. 
 
Appeal Issues (Note: Some appeal issues raised by the appellant were grouped and 
given a single staff response): 
 
1. The project was improperly noticed and the appellant did not receive a notice of 
the hearing. 
 
The Planning Commission hearing was noticed consistent with Section 28.87.380.A, 
Notice of Hearing, of the Municipal Code. As required, a notice is mailed out ten days 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Planning Commission Approval Of 803 North Milpas Street 
March 23, 2010 
Page 4 

 

prior to the hearing to the owners of parcels that are located within 300 feet of the 
project site. Also included in the mailed noticing are parties interested in any 
development on a particular parcel who provide their contact information in writing to 
staff. In addition to this noticing, a yellow notice of pending project sign is placed on the 
project site adjacent to the front property line. The sign provides dates of the project and 
contact information. 
 
2. Granting the Modification is inconsistent with the Zoning Ordinance. The 
Modification creates an inaccurate finding for approval of the Tentative Subdivision Map 
that there will be no adverse impact on the street, traffic and parking. 
 
The granting of a Modification to reduce parking is appropriate if it can be demonstrated 
to the decision maker that parking demand can be met on the project site. A traffic and 
parking demand study, dated June 14, 2007, was prepared by Associated 
Transportation Engineers (ATE).  The parking study concluded that the peak 
commercial parking demand for the project would be 10 spaces when accounting for 
shared parking.  The sharing of two residential guest parking spaces would be 
appropriate because the commercial parking lot would be available during the evening 
hours.   
 
The project site is located in an area of town where alternative transportation, such as 
bus service, is readily available, potentially reducing the parking and traffic generation 
assumptions. The project also would eliminate three of the four existing driveways, 
which allow for more on street parking. Thus the project could be found consistent with 
the finding that it would not create an adverse impact on the street, traffic and parking. 
 
3 The addition of the bulb out is inappropriate. It will restrict traffic, reduce parking 
spaces and cause accidents. The "traffic-calming devices" have created unsafe 
impediments to traffic flow, pedestrian and cyclist safety throughout our community and 
are not authorized as part of any ordinance or code. 
 
A curb extension, proposed as part of the project, would be located at the corner of 
Milpas and De la Guerra Streets. The basis for the curb extension is the Pedestrian 
Master Plan (PMP), which was adopted by the City Council by Resolution 06-065 on 
July 18, 2006. The PMP was the result of public outreach and feedback from the 
community that desired improving the pedestrian experience, including along the Milpas 
Corridor. The PMP was prepared, in part, as a result of Circulation Element Goal 5, 
Increase Walking and Other Paths of Travel. Policy 5.6 of the Circulation Element states 
"the City shall make street crossings easier and more accessible to pedestrians", and 
one of the implementations of this policy is to reduce the distance for pedestrians to 
cross a street.  PMP Policy 1.3 states, “The City shall enhance pedestrian corridors.”  
The PMP states specifically concerning the Milpas Street Corridor (Page 62): 
 

Milpas Street is the Lower Eastside commercial corridor, and offers a 
myriad of services in close proximity to the neighborhood. Sidewalks are 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Planning Commission Approval Of 803 North Milpas Street 
March 23, 2010 
Page 5 

 

fairly consistent along its length (except for a block near Cabrillo 
Boulevard), but are not wide enough to comfortably accommodate the 
existing pedestrian demand. New developments should include pedestrian 
frontage space to give the buildings better connection with the sidewalk. 
Other pedestrian needs are related to the amount of crossings on this 
busy street as residents walk to schools or work. Main improvement needs 
(see Map V-12 and Map V-13) on this corridor include crossing 
improvements such as high visibility crosswalks and curb extensions. 
 

Map V-12 (Attachment 5) of the PMP shows a number of options for pedestrian 
enhancements for the intersection at De la Guerra.  Curb extensions are one of the 
options. This option provides the highest quality pedestrian experience. However, 
Council may consider other options for pedestrian enhancements as part of their 
consideration of this appeal. Through the discretionary review process, a decision 
maker can request improvements in the right-of-way, such as upgrading the sidewalk, 
improving street lights and improvements to the adjacent roads, where necessary. 
 
The applicant requested that the Planning Commission allow a narrower sidewalk along 
Milpas Street, in part, because the project included a curb extension. Staff informed the 
Planning Commission that the project should be consistent with the provisions of the 
PMP, but that the Commission did have the discretion to allow an alternative 
improvement. After reviewing the project and discussing implementation of the PMP, 
the Planning Commission stated that the applicant should meet the provisions of the 
PMP. 
 
This curb extension would not be the first in the Milpas Street Corridor.  The intersection 
at Canon Perdido, at the northern end of the block, currently has four curb extensions.  
These were installed as a part of the Milpas Beautification Project with the assistance of 
the Milpas Business Merchants Association (no longer in existence) and other public 
input. 
 
The curb extension would not be wider than width of a parked car and is not considered 
a "traffic calming device". The purpose of this curb extension is not to impede or slow 
traffic, but to provide pedestrians a shorter distance to cross the street and have better 
visibility of traffic and give a motorist better visibility of pedestrians. The number of traffic 
lanes will remain the same.  However, right turning vehicles at a red light may need to 
wait for a green light if behind a vehicle traveling straight.  
 
The curb extension will occupy the existing red curbed areas of both Milpas and De la 
Guerra Streets and not reduce on-street parking. As discussed above, both of the 
driveways on Milpas Street are proposed to be eliminated, which could create up to 
three additional on-street parking spaces.  
 
The curb extension does not create a safety hazard for cyclists. The safe cyclist path of 
travel is to the left of the parking lane in a straight trajectory through the intersection, 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Planning Commission Approval Of 803 North Milpas Street 
March 23, 2010 
Page 6 

 

which provides a level of predictability for the motorist when they overtake a cyclist. 
Because the curb extension is not wider than a parked car, it will not cause a cyclist to 
move further into the traffic lane.  
 
The curb extension is one part of an overall improvement to the sidewalk along the 
project site. Other improvements include a wider sidewalk along Milpas Street and 
landscaping in the form of new street trees. On the project site, there will be a frontage 
zone between the building and the back of the sidewalk that will also include 
landscaping. The bus stop along De la Guerra Street will be re-located approximately 
20 feet to the west.  MTD reviewed the proposed new location and found it acceptable.  
 
CONCLUSIONS & FINDINGS:   
 
The project was properly noticed consistent with the Municipal Code. The Modification 
to reduce the number of parking places is appropriate, and is based upon commonly 
used parking demand analysis that included parking data from similar types of projects. 
The Planning Commission found the project consistent with ordinances and policies, in 
part, because sufficient parking is provided on the project site and will not impact 
surrounding properties. The project also adds up to three additional on-street parking 
spaces for surrounding businesses.  The curb extension on De la Guerra and Milpas 
Streets will not diminish the traffic lanes, and will provide a higher quality experience 
and greater visibility for pedestrians crossing these streets, including students of the two 
nearby schools. The basis for the curb extension is the Pedestrian Master Plan.  
 
NOTE: The following information has been provided to Councilmembers under 

separate cover and is available for review in the City Clerk’s office and 
online as noted: 
 
• Project plans 
• Planning Commission Staff Report dated August 20, 2009 - Online: 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/Government/Boards_and_Commissions_N-
Z/Planning_Commission/Archives/2009.htm  

• Planning Commission Staff Report dated November 5, 2005 - Online 
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/Government/Boards_and_Commissions_N-
Z/Planning_Commission/Archives/2009.htm  

• Negative declaration, with technical studies, dated June 2, 2009, 
adopted by Planning Commission on August 20, 2009 – Available 
online: 
(http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/Resident/Environmental_Documents/803_N
_Milpas_Street/)  

 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Planning Commission Approval Of 803 North Milpas Street 
March 23, 2010 
Page 7 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Appellants’ letter dated November 15, 2009 
2. Site Plan & Statistics 
3. Resolution No. 043-09, approved November 5, 2009  
4. Planning Commission Minutes dated August 20, 2009 & 

November 5, 2009  
5. Map V-12 & V-13 Milpas Street Corridor North & South - 

Pedestrian Master Plan 
 
PREPARED BY: Peter Lawson, Associate Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 1





ATTACHMENT 2





 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PLANNING COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. 043-09 
803 N. MIPLAS STREET 

TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP, DEVELOPMENT PLAN, AND MODIFICATION 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 

 
APPLICATION OF JARRETT GORIN AGENT FOR 803 N MILPAS STREET LLC, 803 N 
MILPAS STREET, 031-042-028 COMMERCIAL (C-2) ZONE DISTRICTY, GENERAL PLAN 
DESIGNATION:  GENERAL COMMERCE   (MST2006-00510) 
The proposed project consists of a mixed use development containing five mixed use 
residential/commercial condominiums, one live/work unit, two residential units and one commercial 
condominium.  The development would be split among three buildings totaling 19,886 net square feet.  
The overall height of the proposed development would be between 37 feet and 38 feet, 6 inches.  
Parking would be located within eight two-car garages and on the interior of the lot for a total of 26 
parking spaces.  Access to the garages and parking lot would be via a driveway from De la Guerra 
Street, located between two of the buildings.  Pedestrian access to the site would also be provided from 
Milpas Street.  A landscaped area would be provided in the northwest corner of the site, behind the 
open parking.  An area along the northern property line has been reserved for the location of secured 
remediation equipment, if required. 

The discretionary applications required for this project are:   

1. A Tentative Subdivision Map for a one-lot subdivision with nine condominium units (eight 
residential, one commercial) per SBMC Chapters 27.07 and 27.13; 

2. A Modification to allow less than the required number of parking spaces (SBMC 
§28.92.110.A.1); 

3. A Development Plan to allow the construction of 2,851 net square feet of nonresidential 
development on APN 031-042-028 (SBMC §28.87.300); and 

4. Design Review by the Architectural Board of Review (ABR). 

The Planning Commission will consider approval of the Negative Declaration prepared for the project 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15074. 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has held the required public hearing on the above 
application, and the Applicant was present. 

WHEREAS, no one appeared to speak in favor of the application, and no one appeared to 
speak in opposition thereto, and the following exhibits were presented for the record: 

1. Staff Report with Attachments, August 13, 2009 

2. Staff Report with Attachments, October 29, 2009 

3. Site Plans 

 

ATTACHMENT 3

gfeliciano
Typewritten Text



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 2 
 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Planning Commission: 

I. Approved the subject application making the following findings and determinations: 

A. Modification – Parking (SBMC §28.92.110.A.1) 
A modification or waiver of the parking or loading requirements where, in the particular 
instance, the modification will not be inconsistent with the purposes and intent of this 
Title and will not cause an increase in the demand for parking space or loading space in 
the immediate area. 
 
Peak demand parking would be provided on-site through shared parking with the 
proposed commercial uses. A traffic study was prepared that demonstrated that all 
parking will be accommodated on the project and thus would not impact on-street 
parking. 

B. The Tentative Map (SBMC §27.07.100) 

The Tentative Subdivision Map is consistent with the General Plan and the Zoning 
Ordinance of the city of Santa Barbara.  

With the approval of the Modification, the proposed commercial and residential 
development is consistent with the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan designation of 
General Commerce. The project provides more than the required outdoor space. The 
reduced number of parking spaces would meet the peak demand as demonstrated in the 
submitted parking study. 

The site is physically suitable for the proposed development and, the project is 
consistent with the variable density provisions of the Municipal Code and the General 
Plan.  

The proposed development is within an area that is adjacent to both residential and 
commercial development. The site is level and provides adequate pedestrian and vehicle 
access. The residential development is consistent with the variable density 
requirements. 

The proposed use is consistent with the vision for this neighborhood of the General 
Plan.   

The project site is within the Milpas area, which as described as a mix of residential 
and commercial uses. The development would be consistent with the vision of the 
neighborhood. 

The design of the project will not cause substantial environmental damage, and 
associated improvements will not cause serious public health problems. 

The project site is currently vacant however, it was developed with a gasoline service 
station. The site is currently under a soil remediation program, which is in the final 
stages of completion. The project would be consistent with the Storm Water 
Management Program, which includes design features that would clean up pollutants 
from the parking area. 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 3 
 

 

C. The New Condominium Development (SBMC §27.13.080) 
1. The project is compliant with all provisions of the City’s Condominium 

Ordinance. 

The project complies with variable density requirements.  Each unit includes 
laundry facilities, separate utility metering, adequate unit size and storage 
space, and the required private outdoor living space.   

2. The proposed development is consistent with the General Plan of the city of 
Santa Barbara. 

The project can be found consistent with policies of the City’s General Plan 
including the Housing Element, Conservation Element, and Land Use Element.  
The project will provide infill residential development that is compatible with 
the surrounding neighborhood. 

3. The proposed development is consistent with the principles of sound community 
planning and will not have an adverse impact upon the neighborhood's 
aesthetics, parks, streets, traffic, parking and other community facilities and 
resources. 

The project is an infill residential project proposed in an area and zone district 
where residential development is a permitted use.  The project is adequately 
served by public streets, will provide adequate parking to meet the demands of 
the project and will not result in traffic impacts.  The design has been reviewed 
by the City’s design review board, which found the architecture and site design 
appropriate.  

D. Development Plan Approval (SBMC §28.87.300) 

1. The proposed development complies with all of provisions of the Zoning 
Ordinance; 

With the approval of the Modification to reduce the parking by one space, the 
project would comply with all sections of the Zoning Ordinance. 

2. The proposed development is consistent with the principles of sound community 
planning; 

The project would be infill development and provide additional residential 
development along with maintaining commercial development on the Milpas 
Street. 

3. The proposed development will not have a significant adverse impact upon the 
neighborhood’s aesthetics/character in that the size, bulk and scale of the 
development are compatible with the neighborhood; 

The project would be similar in size to surrounding development. The 
development is subject to design review and it has received favorable comments 
from the ABR. 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 4 
 

 

4. The proposed development will not have an unmitigated adverse impact upon 
the City and South Coast affordable housing stock; 

The proposed project would be located on a vacant lot that was developed with 
a gas station. Thus, the development is not displacing older, existing housing 
stock. 

5. The proposed development will not have a significant unmitigated adverse 
impact on the City’s water resources; 

There iare adequate water resources to supply the project site. The project 
would be required to comply with the current plumbing code and install the 
most current water conservation fixtures. Additionally, the landscaping for the 
project is reviewed by the Architectural Board of Review and drought tolerant 
planting would be required. 

6. The proposed development will not have a significant unmitigated adverse 
impact on the City’s traffic; 

A traffic study was prepared for the project and the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND) concluded that impacts were less than significant. 
Additionally, the development is located adjacent to a Metropolitan Transit 
District (MTD) stop and there are a number of commercial businesses in the 
area for the residents of the proposed project. 

7. Resources are available and any applicable traffic improvements will be in place 
at the time of project occupancy. 

The project includes improvements to the public right-of-way both on De la 
Guerra and Milpas Streets. Resources are available to serve the site. 

II. Said approval is subject to the following conditions: 

A. California Department of Fish and Game Fees Required.  Pursuant to Section 
21089(b) of the California Public Resources Code and Section 711.4 et. seq. of the 
California Fish and Game Code, the approval of this permit/project shall not be 
considered final unless the specified Department of Fish and Game fees are paid and 
filed with the California Department of Fish and Game within five days of the project 
approval.  The fees required are $2,500.00 for projects with Environmental Impact 
Reports and $1,800.00 for projects with Negative Declarations.  Without the appropriate 
fee, the Notice of Determination cannot be filed and the project approval is not 
operative, vested, or final.  The fee shall be delivered to the Planning Division 
immediately upon project approval in the form of a check payable to the California 
Department of Fish and Game. 

B. Design Review.  The project is subject to the review and approval of the (Architectural 
Board of Review (ABR).  ABR shall not grant preliminary approval of the project until 
the following Planning Commission land use conditions have been satisfied. 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 5 
 

 

1. Useable Common Open Space.  Adequate usable common open space shall be 
provided in a location accessible by all units within the development. 

2. Pedestrian Pathway.  A separate pedestrian pathway shall be provided along 
the driveway to the parking at the rear of the property from the sidewalk using a 
different paving or walkway material to improve pedestrian friendliness. 

3. Minimize Visual Effects of Paving.  Textured or colored pavement shall be 
used in paved areas of the project or other materials deemed appropriate by the 
ABR to minimize the visual effect of the expanse of paving, create a pedestrian 
environment, and provide access for all users. 

4. Screened Check Valve/Backflow.  The check valve or anti-backflow devices 
for fire sprinkler and/or irrigation systems shall be provided in a location 
screened from public view or included in the exterior wall of the building. 

5. Permeable Paving.  Incorporate a permeable paving system for the project 
driveway, walkways and parking area that will allow a portion of the paved area 
runoff to percolate into the ground, except as necessary to meet Fire Department 
weight requirements.  Materials in driveways and parking areas must be 
approved by the Public Works Director/Transportation Manager. 

6. Lighting. Lighting design shall conform with City Lighting Ordinance 
requirements, including shielding and direction to the ground to avoid off-site 
lighting and glare effects, and shall be approved by the Architectural Board of 
Review (A-2). 

C. Recorded Conditions Agreement.  Prior to the issuance of any Public Works permit or 
Building permit for the project on the Real Property, the Owner shall execute an 
Agreement Relating to Subdivision Map Conditions Imposed on Real Property, which 
shall be reviewed as to form and content by the City Attorney, Community 
Development Director and Public Works Director, recorded in the Office of the County 
Recorder, and shall include the following:   

1. Approved Development.  The development of the Real Property approved by 
the Planning Commission on August 20, 2009 is limited to:  

The project consists of a mixed use development containing five mixed use 
residential/commercial condominiums, one live/work unit, two residential units 
and one commercial condominium.  The development would be split among 
three buildings totaling 19,886 net square feet.  The overall height of the 
proposed development would be between 37 feet and 38 feet, 6 inches.  Parking 
would be located within eight two-car garages and on the interior of the lot for a 
total of 26 parking spaces.  Access to the garages and parking lot would be via a 
driveway from De la Guerra Street, located between two of the buildings.  
Pedestrian access to the site would also be provided from Milpas Street.  A 
landscaped area would be provided in the northwest corner of the site, behind 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 6 
 

 

the open parking.  An area along the northern property line has been reserved for 
the location of secured remediation equipment, if required. 

And the improvements shown on the Tentative Subdivision Map signed by the 
chairman of the Planning Commission on said date and on file at the City of 
Santa Barbara.  

2. Uninterrupted Water Flow.  The Owner shall provide for the uninterrupted 
flow of water onto the Real Property including, but not limited to, swales, 
natural watercourses, conduits and any access road, as appropriate. 

3. Recreational Vehicle Storage Prohibition.  No recreational vehicles, boats, or 
trailers shall be stored on the Real Property.   

4. Landscape Plan Compliance.  The Owner shall comply with the Landscape 
Plan approved by the Architectural Board of Review (ABR).  Such plan shall 
not be modified unless prior written approval is obtained from the ABR.  The 
landscaping on the Real Property shall be provided and maintained in 
accordance with said landscape plan.  If said landscaping is removed for any 
reason without approval by the ABR, the owner is responsible for its immediate 
replacement.   

5. Storm Water Pollution Control and Drainage Systems Maintenance.  Owner 
shall maintain the drainage system and storm water pollution control devices 
intended to intercept siltation and other potential pollutants (including, but not 
limited to, hydrocarbons, fecal bacteria, herbicides, fertilizers, etc. ) in a 
functioning state (and in accordance with the Operations and Maintenance 
Procedure Plan prepared in accordance with the Storm Water Management Plan 
BMP Guidance Manual).  Should any of the project’s surface or subsurface 
drainage structures or storm water pollution control methods fail to capture, 
infiltrate, and/or treat water, or result in increased erosion, the Owner shall be 
responsible for any necessary repairs to the system and restoration of the eroded 
area.  Should repairs or restoration become necessary, prior to the 
commencement of such repair or restoration work, the applicant shall submit a 
repair and restoration plan to the Community Development Director to 
determine if an amendment or a new Building Permit is required to authorize 
such work.  The Owner is responsible for the adequacy of any project-related 
drainage facilities and for the continued maintenance thereof in a manner that 
will preclude any hazard to life, health, or damage to the Real Property or any 
adjoining property. 

6. Required Private Covenants.  The Owners shall record in the official records 
of Santa Barbara County either private covenants, a reciprocal easement 
agreement, or a similar agreement which, among other things, shall provide for 
all of the following: 

a. Common Area Maintenance.  An express method for the 
appropriate and regular maintenance of the common areas, common 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 7 
 

 

access ways, common utilities and other similar shared or common 
facilities or improvements of the development, which methodology 
shall also provide for an appropriate cost-sharing of such regular 
maintenance among the various owners of the condominium units. 

b. Garages Available for Parking.  A covenant that includes a 
requirement that all garages be kept open and available for the 
parking of vehicles owned by the residents of the property in the 
manner for which the garages were designed and permitted. 

c. Landscape Maintenance.  A covenant that provides that the 
landscaping shown on the approved Landscaping Plan shall be 
maintained and preserved at all times in accordance with the Plan.  

d. Trash and Recycling.  Trash holding areas shall include recycling 
containers with at least equal capacity as the trash containers, and 
trash/recycling areas shall be easily accessed by the consumer and 
the trash hauler.  Green waste shall either have containers adequate 
for the landscaping or be hauled off site by the landscaping 
maintenance company.  If no green waste containers are provided for 
common interest developments, include an item in the CC&Rs 
stating that the green waste will be hauled off site. 

e. Covenant Enforcement.  A covenant that permits each owner to 
contractually enforce the terms of the private covenants, reciprocal 
easement agreement, or similar agreement required by this condition.  

7. Commercial Space Use Limitations.  Due to potential parking impacts from 
the shared parking, uses other than Office, Commercial and Industrial Uses, as 
described in the Parking Section of the Municipal Code, are not permitted 
without further environmental and/or Planning Commission review and 
approval.  Prior to initiating a change of use, the Owner shall submit a letter to 
the Community Development Director detailing the proposal, and the Director 
shall determine the appropriate review procedure and notify the Applicant. 

8. Residential Permit Parking Program.  Residents shall not participate in the 
Residential Permit Parking Program. 

D. Public Works Submittal Prior to Final Map Approval.  The Owner shall submit the 
following, or evidence of completion of the following, to the Public Works Department 
for review and approval, prior to processing the approval of the Final Map and prior to 
the issuance of any permits for the project: 

1. Final Map.  The Owner shall submit to the Public Works Department for 
approval, a Final Map prepared by a licensed land surveyor or registered Civil 
Engineer.  The Final Map shall conform to the requirements of the City Survey 
Control Ordinance. 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 8 
 

 

2. Dedication(s).  Easements as shown on the approved Tentative Subdivision 
Map and described as follows, subject to approval of the easement scope and 
location by the Public Works Department and/or the Building and Safety 
Division:  

a. Dedication for All Street Purposes along Milpas Street in order to 
establish an additional two-foot (2’) wide public right-of-way.  

3. Water Rights Assignment Agreement.  The Owner shall assign to the City of 
Santa Barbara the exclusive right to extract ground water from under the Real 
Property in an Agreement Assigning Water Extraction Rights.  Engineering 
Division Staff will prepare said agreement for the Owner’s signature.   

4. Required Private Covenants.  The Owner shall submit a copy of the draft 
private covenants, reciprocal easement agreement, or similar private agreements 
required for the project at the time of submitting for Parcel Map review. 

5. Drainage Calculations.  The Owner shall submit final drainage calculations 
prepared by a registered civil engineer demonstrating that the new development 
will not increase runoff amounts above existing conditions for a 25-year storm 
event.  Any increase in runoff shall be retained on-site. 

6. Drainage and Water Quality.  Project drainage shall be designed, installed, 
and maintained such that stormwater runoff from the first inch of rain from any 
storm event shall be retained and treated onsite in accordance with the City’s 
NPDES Storm Water Management Program.  Runoff should be directed into a 
passive water treatment method such as a bioswale, landscape feature (planter 
beds and/or lawns), infiltration trench, etc.  Project plans for grading, drainage, 
stormwater treatment methods, and project development, shall be subject to 
review and approval by City Building Division and Public Works Department.  
Sufficient engineered design and adequate measures shall be employed to ensure 
that no significant construction-related or long-term effects from increased 
runoff, erosion and sedimentation, urban water pollutants from the parking area, 
or groundwater pollutants would result from the project.  The Owner shall 
maintain the drainage system and storm water pollution control methods in a 
functioning state. 

If mechanical pollutant interceptors are proposed as part of the project, the 
Owner shall provide an Operations and Maintenance Procedure Plan (describing 
replacement schedules for pollution absorbing pillows, etc.) for the operation 
and use of the storm drain surface pollutant interceptors.  The Plan shall be 
reviewed and approved consistent with the Storm Water Management Plan BMP 
Guidance Manual. 

7. N. Milpas Street Public Improvements.  The Owner shall submit C-1 public 
improvement for construction of improvements along the property frontage on 
N. Milpas Street.  The C-1 plans shall be submitted separately from Building 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 9 
 

 

Plans.  As determined by the Public Works Department, the improvements shall 
include the following to City Standards:  

• Provide a sidewalk, curb and gutter twelve-foot (12') wide by +/-one-
hundred and ten linear feet (110 lf). The width of sidewalk shall be 
comprised of the existing eight (8) foot sidewalk area, a two (2) foot 
extension into the right-of-way as measured from the existing curb face 
and a two (2) foot extension into the project site as described in 
Condition 2.a.; 

• Supply and install three (3) new street trees and tree grates  as approved 
by the City Arborist and Parks Commission; 

• Construct dual directional access ramps with curb extension at 
intersection of Milpas and De La Guerra as shown on approved 
Tentative Map;  

• Retire existing cobra-head luminaire and replace with new City Standard 
Dome Style commercial luminaire (existing fluted concrete pole and 
pedestrian Dome style luminaire to remain);  

• Slurry seal to the centerline of the street along entire subject property 
frontage (since street was recently overlaid); 

• Connect to City water and sewer mains; 

• Provide public drainage improvements with supporting drainage 
calculations and/or hydrology report for installation of curb drain outlets; 

• Preserve and/or reset survey monuments and contractor stamps; and 

• Supply and install directional/regulatory traffic control signs per 2006 
MUTCD w/CA supplements during construction and provide adequate 
positive drainage from site.   

All work in the public right-of-way requires a separate Public Works Permit. 

8. De la Guerra Street Public Improvements.  The Owner shall submit C-1 
public improvement plans for construction of improvements along the property 
frontage on De la Guerra Street.  The C-1 plans shall be submitted separately 
from Building Plans.  As determined by the Public Works Department, the 
improvements shall include the following to City Standards:  six-foot (6’) foot 
wide sidewalk,  four-foot (4’) foot wide parkway, supply and install four (4) 
new street trees and tree grates per approval of the City Arborist and Parks 
Commission, nineteen-foot (19’) wide commercial style driveway apron 
modified to meet Title 24 requirements, construct new MTD bus stop,  construct 
dual directional access ramps with curb extension at intersection of Milpas and 
De La Guerra as shown on approved Tentative Map, saw-cut and replace 
existing concrete cross-gutter to centerline, +/-seventy linear feet  (70 lf) curb 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 10 
 

 

and gutter, four-foot (4’) wide parkway, crack seal to the centerline of the street 
along entire subject property frontage and slurry seal a minimum of 20 feet 
beyond the limit of all trenching, connection to City water and sewer mains, 
public drainage improvements with supporting hydrology report for installation 
of curb drain outlets, preserve and/or reset survey monuments and contractor 
stamps (if any), supply and install directional/regulatory traffic control signs per 
2006 MUTCD w/CA supplements during construction, protect and/or relocate 
existing monitoring wells which require permits from the County Fire 
Department and provide a copy of County Permit to City Inspector and provide 
adequate positive drainage from site.  All work in the public right-of-way 
requires a separate Public Works Permit. 

9. Land Development Agreement.  The Owner shall submit an executed 
Agreement for Land Development Improvements, prepared by the Engineering 
Division, an approvable Engineer’s Estimate, signed, and stamped by a 
registered civil engineer, and securities for construction of improvements prior 
to execution of the agreement. 

10. Encroachment Permits.  Where required, obtain any encroachment or other 
permits from the City or other jurisdictions (State, Flood Control, County, etc.) 
for the construction of improvements (including any required appurtenances) 
within their rights of way (easement).   

11. Removal or Relocation of Public Facilities.  Removal or relocation of any 
public utilities or structures must be performed by the Owner or by the person or 
persons having ownership or control thereof. 

12. Relocation of MTD Fixtures.  Relocation of the MTD bus stop, red curb, 
bench, and pole sign on De La Guerra Street, as determined by the Public Works 
Director and MTD. 

13. Maintenance Agreement Required.  The Owner shall submit an Executed 
Agreement for Maintenance of the proposed parking area and driveway, subject 
to the review and approval of the Public Works Director and City Attorney. 

14. Frontage Zone Improvement. Provide a three-foot (3') frontage zone, as 
defined in the Pedestrian Master Plan, between the Milpas Street public right-of-
way line (as established in Condition number D.7) and building face. The 
frontage zone shall be depicted on the tentative subdivision map and include a 
note that no building shall encroach into the frontage zone. 

 
E. Public Works Requirements Prior to Building Permit Issuance.  The Owner shall 

submit the following, or evidence of completion of the following to the Public Works 
Department for review and approval, prior to the issuance of a Building Permit for the 
project.  



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 11 
 

 

1. Recordation of Final Map Agreements.  After City Council approval, the 
Owner shall provide evidence of recordation to the Public Works Department. 

2. Approved Public Improvement Plans and Concurrent Issuance of Public 
Works Permit.  Upon acceptance of the approved public improvement plans, a 
Public Works permit shall be issued concurrently with a Building Permit. 

3. Solid Waste Management Plan.  Owner shall submit a solid waste 
management plan that identifies feasible measures to address the construction 
and operation of the parking lot, bicycle station and office uses which may 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 

a. Provision of space and/or bins for storage of recyclable materials 
within the project site.  This information shall be shown on the 
building plans and installed as a part of the proposed project’s 
improvements. 

b. Development and implementation of a plan for collection of 
recyclable materials on a regular basis. 

c. Development of source reduction measures, indicating the method 
and amount of expected reduction. 

d. Implementation of a program to purchase recycled materials used in 
association with the proposed project (paper, newsprint, etc.).  This 
could include requesting suppliers to show recycled material content. 

e. Implementation of a monitoring program (quarterly, bi-annually) to 
attain and maintain a 35-50% minimum participation in recycling 
efforts. 

f. Implementation of a composting landscape waste reduction program. 

4. Traffic Control Plan.  A traffic control plan shall be submitted, as specified in 
the City of Santa Barbara Traffic Control Guidelines.  Traffic Control Plans are 
subject to approval by the Public Works Director/Transportation Manager.  
Construction and storage in the public right-of-way is prohibited during Fiesta in 
the affected areas (around McKenzie Park, Downtown and Waterfront) and 
during the Holiday Shopping Season (between Thanksgiving Day and New 
Years Day) in all commercial shopping areas, including but not limited to Upper 
State Street, the Mesa shopping area, Downtown and Coast Village Road. 

F. Community Development Requirements with the Building or Public Works Permit 
Application.  The following shall be submitted with the application for any Building or 
Public Works permit: 

1. Project Environmental Coordinator Required.  Submit to the Planning 
Division a contract with a qualified representative for the Owner, subject to 
approval of the contract and the representative by the Planning Division, to act 
as the Project Environmental Coordinator (PEC).  The PEC shall be responsible 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 12 
 

 

for assuring full compliance with the provisions of the Mitigation Monitoring 
and Reporting Program (MMRP) and Conditions of Approval to the City.  The 
contract shall include the following, at a minimum: 
 

a. The frequency and/or schedule of the monitoring of the mitigation 
measures. 

b. A method for monitoring the mitigation measures. 

c. A list of reporting procedures, including the responsible party, and 
frequency. 

d. A list of other monitors to be hired, if applicable, and their 
qualifications. 

e. Submittal of weekly reports during demolition, excavation, grading 
and footing installation and monthly reports on all other construction 
activity regarding MMRP and condition compliance by the PEC to 
the Community Development Department/Case Planner. 

f. The PEC shall have authority over all other monitors/specialists, the 
contractor, and all construction personnel for those actions that relate 
to the items listed in the MMRP and conditions of approval, 
including the authority to stop work, if necessary, to achieve 
compliance with mitigation measures. 

2. Zoning Compliance Declaration.  The Owner shall file a Zoning Compliance 
Declaration to assure that the commercial component of Unit Number 8 remains 
intact and there continues to be direct access to commercial space. 

3. Neighborhood Notification Prior to Construction.  At least 20 days prior to 
commencement of construction, the contractor shall provide written notice to all 
property owners and residents within 450 feet of the project area. The notice 
shall contain a description of the proposed project, a construction schedule 
including days and hours of construction, the name and phone number of the 
Project Environmental Coordinator (PEC) who can answer questions, and 
provide additional information or address problems that may arise during 
construction. A 24-hour construction hot line shall be provided.  Informational 
signs with the PEC’s name and telephone number shall also be posted at the site. 
(N-4) 

4. Contractor and Subcontractor Notification.  The Owner shall notify in 
writing all contractors and subcontractors of the site rules, restrictions, and 
Conditions of Approval.  Submit a copy of the notice to the Planning Division. 

5. Park Commission Tree Removal Approval.  Submit to the Planning Division 
verification of approval from the Park Commission for the removal of the street 
trees in the public right-of-way.  



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 13 
 

 

6. Prepare a Structural Crack Survey and Video Reconnaissance. (Note – this 
condition only applies if the construction includes pile driving. A final 
determination shall be made at building permit review) At least twenty (20) 
days prior to the issuance of a demolition permit, Owner shall notify owners and 
occupants of structures within 100 feet of the project site property lines of the 
opportunity to participate in a structural crack survey and video reconnaissance 
of their property.  Prior to the issuance of a demolition permit, Owner shall 
prepare a structural crack survey and video reconnaissance of the property of 
those owners or occupants who express a desire to participate in the survey.  The 
purpose of the survey shall be to document the existing condition of neighboring 
structures within 100 feet of the project site property line and more than 50 years 
old.  After each major phase of project development (demolition, grading, and 
construction), a follow-up structural crack survey and video reconnaissance of 
the property of those owners and occupants who have elected to participate in 
the survey.  Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, Owner shall meet 
with the owners and occupants who have elected to participate in the survey to 
determine whether any structural damage has occurred due to demolition, 
grading or construction at the project site.  Owner shall be responsible for the 
cost of repairing any structural damage caused by project demolition, grading, or 
construction on properties that have elected to participate in the survey.  

7. Letter of Commitment for Pre-Construction Conference.  The Owner shall 
submit to the Planning Division a letter of commitment that states that, prior to 
disturbing any part of the project site for any reason and after the Building 
permit has been issued, the General Contractor shall schedule a conference to 
review site conditions, construction schedule, construction conditions, and 
environmental monitoring requirements.  The conference shall include 
representatives from the Public Works Department Engineering and 
Transportation Divisions, the assigned Building Inspector, the Planning 
Division, the Property Owner, the Contractor and each subcontractor. 

G. Building Permit Plan Requirements.  The following requirements/notes shall be 
incorporated into the construction plans submitted to the Building and Safety Division 
for Building permits: 

1. Design Review Requirements.  Plans shall show all design, landscape and tree 
protection elements, as approved by the Architectural Board of Review outlined 
in Section B above. 

2. Completion of Soil Remediation.  Written evidence of completion of the soil 
remediation activities to the satisfaction of the Santa Barbara County Fire 
Department shall be provided prior to issuance of any building permits other 
than those permits necessary to complete the activities in the Corrective Action 
Plan (H-1.) 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 14 
 

 

3. Vapor Barrier.  Due to the potential for migration of contaminants in 
groundwater from the upgradient site at 800 North Milpas Street, any future 
building at the subject site shall incorporate a vapor barrier (H-2). 

4. Deck Front / Open Yard Construction.  For all residential outdoor activity 
spaces (decks, balconies, or open yard areas) facing Milpas Street and De la 
Guerra Street, the following construction specifications are required such that 
exterior noise levels are reduced to less than 60 dBA: 

Proposed outdoor balconies or decks require a vertical, solid wall three feet high 
with reference to finish floor elevation, with no openings or gaps facing the 
noise source.  The deck wall facing the noise source shall have a minimum ¾-
inch solid thickness, sealed with non-hardening acoustical sealant at all edges, 
seams and construction joints.  However, if glazing is used for this wall, the 
glazing shall be minimum ½-inch thick laminated glass (three unequal layers: 
¼”, 0.060 innerlayer, 3/16”).  Floor drains facing the noise source shall have a 
90 degree bend incorporated in their design, with one opening facing away from 
the transportation noise source (N-1). 

5. Construction for East and South-Facing Elevations.  The following 
construction specification are required in order to result in an acoustical 
performance of less than 45 dBA Ldn interior residential noise level along the 
east and south elevations, where construction assemblies face the transportation 
noise source.  Noise mitigation may fail to perform if each and every following 
recommendation is not followed.  A small crack or air leak in the construction 
may completely compromise all other sound-proofing. (N-2) 

a. Vents and roof penetrations: Soffit vents, eave vents, dormer vents 
and other wall and roof penetrations shall be located on the walls and 
roofs facing away from the noise source (located on the north and 
west elevation) wherever possible.  If kitchens or bathrooms are 
located on the east or south side, remote venting to other elevations is 
required.  If vents are required to be located facing the noise source, 
a 90 degree bend shall be incorporated in the design of the ductwork 
or vent opening. 

b. Walls: Only the east- and south-facing exterior walls closest to the 
transportation noise sources require mitigation.  The wall enclosing 
habitable spaces nearest the noise source shall be constructed with an 
S.T.C. (Sound Transmission Class) rating of 30 or greater.  For 
instance, stucco exterior or fiber-cement panel siding, with 30 pound 
felt on 5/8” sheathing, on 2" x 6" stud walls with R-21 fiber glass batt 
insulation, a ½” layer of interior sound deadening board (Homasote 
440 Sound Barrier or equivalent), and a layer of 5/8" Type X 
Gypsum Board will provide an S.T.C. rating of 30 or greater.  
Construction of the east and south-facing walls must include the 
liberal use of non-hardening acoustical sealant at all construction 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 15 
 

 

joints, including the header and footer construction and the edges and 
corners of gypsum board intersecting ceiling, walls and floor, 
especially behind papered joints.  Apply Homasote 440 Sound 
Barrier directly to the interior side of conventional 2" x 6" framing, 
16" on center using 5d adhesive coated nails.  Space nails 3/8" from 
edges, 6" apart around panel edges and 12" apart on each stud in 
panel field.  Countersink all nails at least 1/16" below surface.  
Provide a gap of 1/8" between abutting edges, 1/4" between floor and 
ceiling.  Using a good grade drywall laminating compound and a 
notched trowel, apply a 6" wide strip down the vertical center of 5/8" 
thick Type X Gypsum Board and a 6" wide strip down each side, 2" 
away from edges.  Apply the compound coated Gypsum Board 
directly to the 440 Sound Barrier.  Avoid coinciding butt joints of 
Gypsum with 440 Sound Barrier joints.  Secure Gypsum with double 
headed nails, or bracing, until laminating compound sets.  Apply 
resilient acoustical sealant (Johns Manville or equivalent) to gaps at 
intersecting walls, ceiling and floor before taping and spackling 
Gypsum Board in conventional manner.  Seal all peripheries and 
apertures and joints around windows. 

c. Acoustic Leaks: Common acoustic leaks, such as electrical outlets, 
pipes, vents, ducts, flues and other breaks in the integrity of the wall, 
ceiling or roof insulation and construction on the east and south sides 
of the dwelling units nearest transportation noise source shall receive 
special attention during construction.  All construction openings and 
joints through the gypsum board on east- and south-facing walls shall 
be insulated, sealed and caulked with expanding foam and a resilient, 
non-hardening caulking material, as appropriate.  All such openings 
and joints shall be airtight to maintain sound isolation.   

d. Windows: To meet the interior 45 dB(A) Ldn requirements, 
windows for habitable spaces on all floors of affected west elevation 
facing the noise source shall be of double-glazed construction with 
one light of laminated glass, and installed in accordance with the 
recommendations of the manufacturer.  The windows shall be fully 
gasketed, with an S.T.C. rating of 35 or better, as determined in 
testing by an accredited acoustical laboratory.  An example that 
meets this requirement is Milgard Quiet Line windows with 
laminated glass.   

e. Doors: To meet the interior 45 dB(A) Ldn requirements, doors 
directly facing the noise source shall be solid core with sound 
dampening and fully gasketed, sealed jambs and grouted frames, 
with an overall S.T.C. rating of 35 or better, as determined in testing 
by an accredited acoustical laboratory. 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 16 
 

 

6. Grading Plan Requirement for Archaeological Resources.  The following 
information shall be printed on the grading plans: 

If archaeological resources are encountered or suspected, work shall be halted or 
redirected immediately and the Planning Division shall be notified.  The 
archaeologist shall assess the nature, extent, and significance of any discoveries 
and develop appropriate management recommendations for archaeological 
resource treatment, which may include, but are not limited to, redirection of 
grading and/or excavation activities, consultation and/or monitoring with a 
Barbareño Chumash representative from the most current City Qualified 
Barbareño Chumash Site Monitors List, etc. 

If the discovery consists of possible human remains, the Santa Barbara County 
Coroner shall be contacted immediately.  If the Coroner determines that the 
remains are Native American, the Coroner shall contact the California Native 
American Heritage Commission.  A Barbareño Chumash representative from the 
most current City Qualified Barbareño Chumash Site Monitors List shall be 
retained to monitor all further subsurface disturbance in the area of the find.  
Work in the area may only proceed after the Planning Division grants 
authorization. 

If the discovery consists of possible prehistoric or Native American artifacts or 
materials, a Barbareño Chumash representative from the most current City 
Qualified Barbareño Chumash Site Monitors List shall be retained to monitor all 
further subsurface disturbance in the area of the find.  Work in the area may only 
proceed after the Planning Division grants authorization. 

7. Drainage and Water Quality.  Project drainage shall be designed, installed, 
and maintained such that stormwater runoff from the first inch of rain from any 
storm event shall be retained and treated onsite in accordance with the City’s 
NPDES Storm Water Management Permit.  Runoff should be directed into a 
passive water treatment method such as a bioswale, landscape feature (planter 
beds and/or lawns), infiltration trench, etc.  Project plans for grading, drainage, 
stormwater treatment methods, and project development, shall be subject to 
review and approval by City Building Division and Public Works Department.  
Sufficient engineered design and adequate measures shall be employed to ensure 
that no significant construction-related or long-term effects from increased 
runoff, erosion and sedimentation, urban water pollutants or groundwater 
pollutants would result from the project.  The Owner shall maintain the drainage 
system and storm water pollution control methods in a functioning state (W-1). 

8. Post-Construction Erosion Control and Water Quality Plan.  Provide an 
engineered drainage plan that addresses the existing drainage patterns and leads 
towards improvement of the quality and rate of water run-off conditions from 
the site by capturing, infiltrating, and/or treating drainage and preventing 
erosion.  The Owner shall employ passive water quality methods, such as 
bioswales, catch basins, or storm drain on the Real Property, or other measures 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 17 
 

 

specified in the Erosion Control Plan, to intercept all sediment and other 
potential pollutants (including, but not limited to, hydrocarbons, fecal bacteria, 
herbicides, fertilizers, etc.) from the parking lot areas and other improved, hard-
surfaced areas prior to discharge into the public storm drain system, including 
any creeks.  All proposed methods shall be reviewed and approved by the Public 
Works Department and the Community Development Department.  Maintenance 
of these facilities shall be provided by the Owner, as outlined in Condition C 6 
a, above, which shall include the regular sweeping and/or vacuuming of parking 
areas and drainage and storm water methods maintenance program. 

9. Trash Enclosure Provision.  A trash enclosure with adequate area for recycling 
containers (an area that allows for a minimum of 50 percent of the total capacity 
for recycling containers) shall be provided on the Real Property and screened 
from view from surrounding properties and the street.  Dumpsters and containers 
with a capacity of 1.5 cubic yards or more shall not be placed within five (5) feet 
of combustible walls, openings, or roofs, unless protected with fire sprinklers. 

10. Bicycle Parking.  In addition to the general requirements for bicycle parking 
spaces, 1 bicycle parking spaces shall be provided per 7 vehicle parking spaces, 
for a total of 2 bicycles. 

11. Conditions on Plans/Signatures.  The final Planning Commission Resolution 
shall be provided on a full size drawing sheet as part of the drawing sets.  Each 
condition shall have a sheet and/or note reference to verify condition 
compliance.  If the condition relates to a document submittal, indicate the status 
of the submittal (e.g., Final Map submitted to Public Works Department for 
review).  A statement shall also be placed on the above sheet as follows:  The 
undersigned have read and understand the above conditions, and agree to abide 
by any and all conditions which is their usual and customary responsibility to 
perform, and which are within their authority to perform. 

Signed: 

________________________________________________________________ 
Property Owner        Date 

________________________________________________________________ 
Contractor    Date    License No. 

________________________________________________________________ 
Architect    Date    License No. 

________________________________________________________________ 
Engineer     Date    License No. 

H. Construction Implementation Requirements.  All of these construction requirements 
shall be carried out in the field by the Owner and/or Contractor for the duration of the 
project construction.  



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 18 
 

 

1. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Requirement.  Owner shall implement 
the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) for the project's 
mitigation measures, as stated in the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the 
project.   

2. Pre-Construction Conference.  Not less than 10 days or more than 20 days 
prior to commencement of construction, a conference to review site conditions, 
construction schedule, construction conditions, and environmental monitoring 
requirements, shall be held by the General Contractor and the .  The conference 
shall include representatives from the Public Works Department Engineering 
and Transportation Divisions, Building Division, Planning Division, the 
Property Owner Project Environmental Coordinator, Contractor and each 
Subcontractor. 

3. Nest Protection.  Proposed project activities including tree and vegetation 
removal shall occur outside the breeding bird season (February 1 – August 15).  
If project activities cannot be feasibly avoided during the bird nesting season the 
project proponent shall conduct a survey prior to construction, using a qualified 
biologist, approved by the City Environmental Analyst, to detect protected 
nesting native birds in the vegetation and trees being trimmed and within 300 
feet of the construction work area.  The survey shall be conducted no more than 
three days before construction is initiated.  If an active nest is located, 
construction within 500 feet of a raptor nest and 300 feet of any other nesting 
bird, vegetation trimming shall be postponed until the nest is vacated and 
juveniles have fledged and this has been confirmed by the qualified biologist 
(BIO -1). 

4. Demolition/Construction Materials Recycling.  Recycling and/or reuse of 
demolition/construction materials shall be carried out to the extent feasible, and 
containers shall be provided on site for that purpose, in order to minimize 
construction-generated waste conveyed to the landfill.  Indicate on the plans the 
location of a container of sufficient size to handle the materials, subject to 
review and approval by the City Solid Waste Specialist, for collection of 
demolition/construction materials.  A minimum of 90% of demolition and 
construction materials shall be recycled or reused.  Evidence shall be submitted 
at each inspection to show that recycling and/or reuse goals are being met. 

5. Sandstone Curb Recycling.  Any existing sandstone curb in the public right-of-
way that is removed and not reused shall be salvaged and sent to the City 
Corporation Annex Yard. 

6. Construction Traffic,  The haul routes for all construction related trucks, three 
tons or more, entering or exiting the site, shall be approved by the 
Transportation Engineer.  Construction-related truck trips shall not be scheduled 
during peak hours (7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.) to help 
reduce truck traffic and noise on adjacent streets and roadways.  The route of 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 19 
 

 

construction-related traffic shall be established to minimize trips through 
surrounding residential neighborhoods (T-1). 

7. Traffic Control Plan.  All elements of the approved Traffic Control Plan shall 
be carried out by the Contractor. 

8. Construction Hours.  Construction (including preparation for construction 
work) is prohibited Monday through Friday before 7:00 a.m. and after 5:00 p.m., 
and all day on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays observed by the City of Santa 
Barbara, as shown below:  (look at longer or shorter hours and Saturday 
construction, depending on project location) 

New Year’s Day January 1st* 
Martin Luther King‘s Birthday  3rd Monday in January 
Cesar Chavez Day March 31st* 
Presidents’ Day 3rd Monday in February 
Memorial Day Last Monday in May 
Independence Day July 4th* 
Labor Day 1st Monday in September 
Thanksgiving Day 4th Thursday in November 
Following Thanksgiving Day Friday following Thanksgiving Day 
Christmas Day December 25th* 

*When a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the preceding Friday or 
following Monday, respectively, shall be observed as a legal holiday. 

Occasional night work may be approved for the hours between 5 p.m. and 8 a.m. 
by the Chief of Building and Zoning per Section 9.13.015 of the Municipal 
Code) between the hours of 5 p.m. and 8 a.m. weekdays In the event of such 
night work approval, the applicant shall provide written notice to all property 
owners and residents within 450 feet of the project property boundary and the 
City Planning and Building Divisions at least 48 hours prior to commencement 
of any. Night work shall not be permitted on weekends and holidays. (N-5). 

9. Construction Best Management Practices (BMPs).  Construction activities 
shall address water quality through the use of BMPs, as approved by the 
Building and Safety Division (W-2). 

10. Construction Parking/Storage/Staging.  Construction parking and storage 
shall be provided as follows (N-2): 

a. During construction, free parking spaces for construction workers 
and construction vehicles shall be provided on-site or off-site in a 
location subject to the approval of the Public Works Director.  
Construction workers are prohibited from parking within the public 
right-of-way, except as outlined in subparagraph b. below. 

b. Parking in the public right of way is permitted as posted by 
Municipal Code, as reasonably allowed for in the 2006 Greenbook 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 20 
 

 

(or latest reference), and with a Public Works permit in restricted 
parking zones.  No more than three (3) individual parking permits 
without extensions may be issued for the life of the project. 

c. Storage or staging of construction materials and equipment within 
the public right-of-way shall not be permitted, unless approved by 
the Transportation Manager.  

11. Construction Dust Control - Watering.  During site grading and transportation 
of fill materials, regular water sprinkling shall occur using reclaimed water 
whenever the Public Works Director determines that it is reasonably available.  
During clearing, grading, earth moving or excavation, sufficient quantities of 
water, through use of either water trucks or sprinkler systems, shall be applied to 
achieve minimum soil moisture of 12% to prevent dust from leaving the site.  
Each day, after construction activities cease, the entire area of disturbed soil 
shall be sufficiently moistened to create a crust. 

Throughout construction, water trucks or sprinkler systems shall also be used to 
keep all areas of vehicle movement damp enough to prevent dust raised from 
leaving the site.  At a minimum, this will include wetting down such areas every 
three hours.  Increased watering frequency will be required whenever the wind 
speed exceeds 15 mph.  (AQ-1) 

12. Construction Dust Control – Tarping.  Trucks transporting fill material to and 
from the site shall be covered from the point of origin and maintain a freeboard 
height of 12 inches (AQ-2). 

13. Construction Dust Control – Gravel Pads.  Gravel pads, 3 inches deep, 25 
feet long, 12 feet wide per lane and edged by rock berm or row of stakes or a 
pipe-grid track out control device shall be installed to reduce mud/dirt track out 
from unpaved truck exit routes (AQ-3).  

14. Construction Dust Control – Minimize Disturbed Area/Speed.  Minimize 
amount of disturbed area and reduce on site vehicle speeds to 15 miles per hour 
or less (AQ-4). 

15. Construction Dust Control – Disturbed Area Treatment.  After clearing, 
grading, earth moving or excavation is completed, the entire area of disturbed 
soil shall be treated to prevent wind erosion.  This may be accomplished by: 

• Seeding and watering until grass cover is grown; 

• Spreading soil binders; 

• Sufficiently wetting the area down to form a crust on the surface with 
repeated soakings as necessary to maintain the crust and prevent dust pickup 
by the wind; 

• Other methods approved in advance by the Air Pollution Control District. 
(AQ-5) 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 21 
 

 

16. Construction Dust Control – Paving.  All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, 
etc., shall be paved as soon as possible.  Additionally, building pads shall be laid 
as soon as possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders are used (AQ-6) 

17. Stockpiling.  If importation, exportation and stockpiling of fill material are 
involved, soil stockpiled for more than two days shall be covered, kept moist by 
applying water at a rate of 1.4 gallons per hour per square yard, or treated with 
soil binders to prevent dust generation.  Apply cover when wind events are 
declared (AQ-7). 

18. Construction Dust Control – Project Environmental Coordinator (PEC).  
The contractor or builder shall designate a person or persons to monitor the dust 
control program and to order increased watering, as necessary, to prevent 
transport of dust offsite. Their duties shall include holiday and weekend periods 
when construction work may not be in progress. The name and telephone 
number of such persons shall be provided to the Air Pollution Control District 
prior to land use clearance for map recordation and land use clearance for finish 
grading for the structure.(AQ-8) 

19. Exhaust Emissions – Engines.  Heavy-duty diesel-powered construction 
equipment manufactured after 1996 (with federally mandated "clean" diesel 
engines) shall be used (AQ-9). 

20. Engine Size.  The engine size of construction equipment shall be the minimum 
practical size (AQ-10). 

21. Equipment Numbers.  The number of construction equipment operating 
simultaneously shall be minimized through efficient management practices to 
ensure that the smallest practical number is operating at any one time (AQ-11). 

22. Equipment Maintenance.  Construction equipment shall be maintained to meet 
the manufacturer’s specifications (AQ-12). 

23. Engine timing.  Construction equipment operating onsite shall be equipped with 
two to four degree engine timing retard or pre-combustion chamber engines 
(AQ-13). 

24. Catalytic Converters.  Catalytic converters shall be installed on gasoline-
powered equipment, if feasible (AQ-14). 

25. Diesel Catalytic Converters.  Diesel catalytic converters, diesel oxidation 
catalysts and diesel particulate filters as certified and/or verified by EPA or 
California shall be installed, if available (AQ-15). 

26. Diesel Replacements.  Diesel powered equipment shall be replaced by electric 
equipment whenever feasible (AQ-16). 

27. Idling Limitation.  Idling of heavy-duty diesel trucks during loading and 
unloading shall be limited to five minutes; auxiliary power units shall be used 
whenever possible (AQ-17). 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 22 
 

 

28. Biodiesel.  Biodiesel shall be used to the maximum extent feasible (AQ-18). 

29. Construction Best Management Practices (BMPs).  Construction activities 
shall address water quality through the use of BMPs, as approved by the 
Building and Safety Division. 

30. Construction Contact Sign.  Immediately after Building permit issuance, 
signage shall be posted at the points of entry to the site that list the contractor(s) 
name, contractor(s) telephone number(s), work hours, site rules, and 
construction-related conditions, to assist Building Inspectors and Police Officers 
in the enforcement of the conditions of approval.  The font size shall be a 
minimum of 0.5 inches in height.  Said sign shall not exceed six feet in height 
from the ground if it is free-standing or placed on a fence.  It shall not exceed 24 
square feet if in a multi-family or commercial zone or six square feet if in a 
single family zone. 

31. Construction Equipment Maintenance.  All construction equipment, 
including trucks, shall be professionally maintained and fitted with standard 
manufacturers’ muffler and silencing devices (N-6). 

32. Graffiti Abatement Required.  Owner and Contractor shall be responsible for 
removal of all graffiti as quickly as possible.  Graffiti not removed within 24 
hours of notice by the Building and Safety Division may result in a Stop Work 
order being issued, or may be removed by the City, at the Owner's expense, as 
provided in SBMC Chapter 9.66. 

33. Unanticipated Archaeological Resources Contractor Notification.  Prior to 
the start of any vegetation or paving removal, demolition, trenching or grading, 
contractors and construction personnel shall be alerted to the possibility of 
uncovering unanticipated subsurface archaeological features or artifacts 
associated with past human occupation of the parcel.  If such archaeological 
resources are encountered or suspected, work shall be halted immediately, the 
City Environmental Analyst shall be notified and the applicant shall retain an 
archaeologist from the most current City Qualified Archaeologists List.  The 
latter shall be employed to assess the nature, extent and significance of any 
discoveries and to develop appropriate management recommendations for 
archaeological resource treatment, which may include, but are not limited to, 
redirection of grading and/or excavation activities, consultation and/or 
monitoring with a Barbareño Chumash representative from the most current City 
qualified Barbareño Chumash Site Monitors List, etc. 

If the discovery consists of possible human remains, the Santa Barbara County 
Coroner shall be contacted immediately.  If the Coroner determines that the 
remains are Native American, the Coroner shall contact the California Native 
American Heritage Commission.  A Barbareño Chumash representative from the 
most current City Qualified Barbareño Chumash Site Monitors List shall be 
retained to monitor all further subsurface disturbance in the area of the find.  



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 23 
 

 

Work in the area may only proceed after the Environmental Analyst grants 
authorization. 

If the discovery consists of possible prehistoric or Native American artifacts or 
materials, a Barbareño Chumash representative from the most current City 
Qualified Barbareño Chumash Site Monitors List shall be retained to monitor all 
further subsurface disturbance in the area of the find.  Work in the area may only 
proceed after the Environmental Analyst grants authorization. 

I. Prior to Certificate of Occupancy.  Prior to issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy, 
the Owner of the Real Property shall complete the following: 

1. Repair Damaged Public Improvements.  Repair any damaged public 
improvements (curbs, gutters, sidewalks, roadways, etc.) subject to the review 
and approval of the Public Works Department per SBMC §22.60.090.  Where 
tree roots are the cause of the damage, the roots shall be pruned under the 
direction of a qualified arborist. 

2. Complete Public Improvements.  Public improvements, as shown in the 
improvement plans, including utility service undergrounding and installation of 
street trees. 

3. Cross-Connection Inspection.  The Owner shall request a cross connection 
inspection by the Public Works Water Reclamation/Cross Connection Specialist. 

4. Fire Hydrant Replacement.  Replace existing nonconforming type fire 
hydrant(s) with commercial-type hydrant(s) described in Standard Detail 6-
003.1 Paragraph 2 of the Public Works Department Standard Details. 

5. Manholes.  Raise all sewer and water manholes on easement to final finished 
grade (if any) 

6. Noise Measurements.  Submit a final report from a licensed acoustical 
engineer, verifying that interior and exterior area noise levels are within 
acceptable levels for residential and/or commercial uses, as appropriate, as 
specified in the Noise Element.  In the event the noise is not mitigated to 
acceptable levels, additional mitigation measures shall be recommended by the 
noise specialist and implemented subject to the review and approval of the 
Building and Safety Division and the Architectural Board of Review (ABR) if 
applicable. (N-3) 

7. Existing Street Trees.  Submit a letter from a qualified arborist, verifying that 
the existing street tree(s) have been properly pruned and trimmed. 

8. Mitigation Monitoring Report.  Submit a final construction report for 
mitigation monitoring. 

9. Evidence of Private CC&Rs Recordation.  Evidence shall be provided that the 
private CC&Rs required in Section C.6.a and D.4.have been recorded. 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 24 
 

 

J. Litigation Indemnification Agreement.  In the event the Planning Commission 
approval of the Project is appealed to the City Council, Applicant/Owner hereby agrees 
to defend the City, its officers, employees, agents, consultants and independent 
contractors (“City’s Agents”) from any third party legal challenge to the City Council’s 
denial of the appeal and approval of the Project, including, but not limited to, challenges 
filed pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (collectively “Claims”).  
Applicant/Owner further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City and the City’s 
Agents from any award of attorney fees or court costs made in connection with any 
Claim. 

Applicant/Owner shall execute a written agreement, in a form approved by the City 
Attorney, evidencing the foregoing commitments of defense and indemnification within 
thirty (30) days of the City Council denial of the appeal and approval of the Project.  
These commitments of defense and indemnification are material conditions of the 
approval of the Project.  If Applicant/Owner fails to execute the required defense and 
indemnification agreement within the time allotted, the Project approval shall become 
null and void absent subsequent acceptance of the agreement by the City, which 
acceptance shall be within the City’s sole and absolute discretion.  Nothing contained in 
this condition shall prevent the City or the City’s Agents from independently defending 
any Claim.  If the City or the City’s Agents decide to independently defend a Claim, the 
City and the City’s Agents shall bear their own attorney fees, expenses, and costs of that 
independent defense. 

NOTICE OF APPROVAL TIME LIMITS: 
The Planning Commission's) action approving the Conditional Use Permit, Modification, 
Performance Standard Permit, or Variance shall terminate two (2) years from the date of the 
approval, per Santa Barbara Municipal Code §28.87.360, unless: 

1. An extension is granted by the Community Development Director prior to the 
expiration of the approval; or 

2. A Building permit for the use authorized by the approval is issued within and the 
construction authorized by the permit is being diligently pursued to completion and 
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

3. The approval has not been discontinued, abandoned or unused for a period of six 
months following the earlier of (a) an Issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the 
use, or (b) two (2) years from granting the approval. 

If multiple discretionary applications are approved for the same project, the expiration date of 
all discretionary approvals shall correspond with the longest expiration date specified by any of 
the discretionary applications, unless such extension would conflict with state or federal law.  
The expiration date of all approvals shall be measured from date of the final action of the City 
on the application, unless otherwise specified by state or federal law. 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 043–09  
803 N. MILPAS STREET 
NOVEMBER 5, 2009 
PAGE 25 
 

 

NOTICE OF DEVELOPMENT PLAN TIME LIMITS: 
The development plan approved, per Santa Barbara Municipal Code §28.87.350, shall expire 
four (4) years from the date of approval unless: 

4. A building or grading permit for the work authorized by the development plan is issued 
prior to the expiration date of the approval. 

5. A time extension is granted by the Staff Hearing Officer for one (1) year prior to the 
expiration date of the approval, only if it is found that there is due diligence to 
implement and complete the proposed project.  No more than one (1) time extension 
may be granted. 

NOTICE OF TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP (INCLUDING NEW 
CONDOMINIUMS AND CONDOMINIUM CONVERSIONS) TIME LIMITS: 

The Planning Commission's action approving the Tentative Map shall expire three (3) years 
from the date of approval.  The subdivider may request an extension of this time period in 
accordance with Santa Barbara Municipal Code §27.07.110. 

 
This motion was passed and adopted on the 5th day of November, 2009 by the Planning 

Commission of the city of Santa Barbara, by the following vote: 

AYES: 5    NOES: 0    ABSTAIN: 0    ABSENT: 2 (Bartlett, Larson) 

I hereby certify that this Resolution correctly reflects the action taken by the city of Santa 
Barbara Planning Commission at its meeting of the above date. 

 
 
 
_______________________________________________ ____________________________ 
Julie Rodriguez, Planning Commission Secretary Date 
 
THIS ACTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION CAN BE APPEALED TO THE CITY 
COUNCIL WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS AFTER THE DATE THE ACTION WAS TAKEN BY THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION. 
 



ATTACHMENT 4











ATTACHMENT 5

























Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  440.05 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 23, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Employee Relations, Administrative Services 
 
SUBJECT: Conference With Labor Negotiator 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code Section 54957.6, to consider 
instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, Employee Relations Manager, regarding 
negotiations with the Police Officers Association, the Police Managers Association, the 
General Bargaining Unit, the Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Units, the Firefighters 
Association, the Hourly Bargaining Unit, and the Supervisory Employees Association, 
and regarding discussions with unrepresented management and confidential employees 
about salaries and fringe benefits.  
 
SCHEDULING: Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT: None anticipated 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Kristy Schmidt, Employee Relations Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo Lopez, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  610.05 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 23, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Housing and Redevelopment Division, Community Development 

Department 
 
SUBJECT: Community Development And Human Services Committee Funding 

Recommendations For Fiscal Year 2011 And Housing And Urban 
Development Consolidated Action Plan 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Approve the funding recommendations of the Community Development and Human 

Services Committee for Fiscal Year 2011 Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) and Human Services funds; 

B. Authorize the Community Development Director to negotiate and execute 
agreements implementing the funding recommendations, subject to the review 
and approval of the City Attorney;  

C. Authorize the City Administrator to sign all necessary documents to submit the 
City’s 2010-2014 Consolidated Plan and 2010 Action Plan to the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD); and 

D. Remove the Third Priority for Human Services funding applications (programs 
that seek to enhance the quality of life of persons whose basic needs are already 
met). 

DISCUSSION: 

Each year since 1975 the City has applied to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement 
funds. The funds are made available to the City to undertake specific eligible projects 
and programs that develop a viable urban community by providing decent housing and 
a suitable living environment. In particular, these funds are required to be used for 
programs that principally benefit low to moderate-income persons. The City also makes 
available additional monies from the General Fund to support human services programs 
that provide direct social services to low income city residents. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Community Development And Human Services Committee Funding Recommendations 
For Fiscal Year 2011 And Housing And Urban Development Consolidated Action Plan 
March 23, 2010 
Page 2 

 

Community Development and Human Services Committee Funding Recommendations 
The recommendations in this report are for CDBG and Human Services funding for Fiscal 
Year 2011. 

The combined application for CDBG and Human Services funds was available to the 
public on November 2, 2009. An announcement was mailed to all agencies that 
expressed an interest in applying this past year or applied for funding in the past two 
years. In addition, advertisements appeared in the Daily Sound and the Santa Barbara 
News Press, a news release was disseminated to the local media and an 
announcement and application were posted on the City of Santa Barbara’s website 
informing the public of the availability of applications and the orientation workshop. An 
orientation technical assistance workshop was held for all prospective applicants on 
November 12, 2009. 

Seventy-four applications were submitted by the deadline of December 16, 2009, which 
represents a decrease of three applications from last year. One applicant subsequently 
withdrew its application. The 73 remaining applicants requested a total of $2,843,131, 
which exceeds the estimated available funding by approximately $932,000. Staff and 
the Community Development and Human Services Committee (CDHSC) reviewed all of 
the applications and interviewed each applicant. In all, the CDHSC invested over 200 
hours interviewing and deliberating on this year's applications. The CDHSC developed 
funding recommendations on the basis of the written applications, program 
presentations, interviews and group deliberations. The CDHSC gave significant 
consideration to the Funding Criteria and Priorities adopted by Council on October 27, 
2009. Detailed descriptions of the combined funding application criteria, as well as 
funding priorities for both CDBG and Human Services, can be found on pages four 
through six of the CDHSC Report on Funding Recommendations FY 2010-2011. This 
report is available for public review on the City’s web page (www.SantaBarbaraCa.gov) 
and in the office of the City Clerk, Main Public Library and the Community Development 
Department. The Draft HUD 2010-2014 Consolidated Plan is also available for public 
review at the above locations. 

The CDHSC continued to ensure that their recommendations for funding followed the 
funding priorities set by Council. The 1st Priority consists of programs that help meet basic 
emergency human needs and programs that directly relate to City-initiated collaborative 
efforts, such as the South Coast Gang Task Force and the Strategies to Address 
Community Issues Related to Homelessness in the City of Santa Barbara. The 2nd 
Priority consists of programs that are preventative in nature and/or promote the highest 
degree of functioning the individual is capable of achieving. The 3rd Priority consists of 
programs that seek to enhance the quality of life of persons whose basic needs are 
already met. There were no applications in the 3rd priority this year and there have been no 
3rd priority applications funded in the past 15 years. Therefore, staff is recommending that 
the 3rd priority be removed 



Council Agenda Report 
Community Development And Human Services Committee Funding Recommendations 
For Fiscal Year 2011 And Housing And Urban Development Consolidated Action Plan 
March 23, 2010 
Page 3 

 

With a large number of applications this year, the CDHSC had to make some tough 
decisions. They were able to recommend funding for only 49 of the 57 applications in the 
Public/Human Services category. Eight programs that demonstrated either an 
extraordinary need or expansion of services were recommended for increases. Twenty-
two programs were recommended for the same funding as last year. In order to fund 
seven new applications, the CDHSC recommended decreases for 12 programs, and no 
funding was recommended for eight programs, including one that received funding last 
year. 

Eleven of the 14 applications in the Capital category were recommended for funding.  
These include five projects that are part of the City Target Area Neighborhood 
Improvement Program (CTANIP). This program targets those neighborhoods in the City 
with the highest proportion of low-income households, population density, 
over-crowding, renter occupancy ratio, crime rates and sub-standard structures. Three 
applications in the administrative category are also recommended for funding.  
Applicant agencies have been notified of their individual recommendations. 

2010-2014 Consolidated Plan: 
Santa Barbara’s HUD mandated 2010-2014 Consolidated Plan (CP) constitutes the City’s 
strategic vision for housing and community development for a five-year period.  Included in 
this CP is the City’s 2010 Consolidated Action Plan, which proposes specific identifiable 
benchmarks for measuring progress in realizing the City’s vision. It acts as the City of 
Santa Barbara’s application to HUD for both Community Development Block Grant and 
HOME Investment Partnership Program funds for Fiscal Year 2011.    

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 

Due to a delay in the receipt of our CDBG Funding Allocation for Fiscal Year 2011, the 
CDHSC approved their funding recommendations based on an estimated 5% increase, 
or $1,131,123, of new CDBG entitlement funds. There will also be $76,564 of 
reprogrammed funds available, which when added to the entitlement, provides an 
estimated total of $1,207,687 for the Fiscal Year 2011 CDBG program, $169,668 of 
which will be available for Public Services. 

The City of Santa Barbara has provided funds for local agencies to provide essential 
social services for many years. In the proposed Fiscal Year 2011 City General Fund 
budget, Human Services funding is recommended at $703,256, which is the same as 
the current fiscal year. 

Under the combined funding process, the City's Human Services funds of $703,256 are 
combined with CDBG funds available under the Public Services category of $169,668, 
for a total of $872,924 in this category. The CDBG funds available for Capital Projects 
total $761,794. The remaining CDBG funds are allocated for administration/fair housing 
and Rental Housing Mediation Task Force. 



Council Agenda Report 
Community Development And Human Services Committee Funding Recommendations 
For Fiscal Year 2011 And Housing And Urban Development Consolidated Action Plan 
March 23, 2010 
Page 4 

 

Because the City has not yet received an official CDBG funding announcement from the 
Department of HUD, the CDHSC added funding contingencies to their 
recommendations, as follows: 

• HUD Decrease in Funds 
 Public/Human Services – Reduce/eliminate funding for lowest rated 2nd priority 

programs, as necessary. 
 Capital – Eliminate/reduce, as necessary, funding for the Cabrillo Ballfield 

Fence, Housing Rehabilitation, and the Ortega Park Restrooms. 

• HUD Increase in Funds 
 Public/Human Services – Increase funding to Legal Aid by $3,000, then 

increase highest rated 1st priority programs by $1,000 each until funds are 
gone or a program is fully funded. 

 Capital – Increase funding for the Ortega Park Restrooms and Access 
Ramps, as necessary, until fully funded. Any additional funds would be 
reprogrammed to Fiscal Year 2012.  

 
**The Community Development and Human Services Committee (CDHSC) Report 
on Funding Recommendations FY 2010-2011 and the City’s Draft 2010-2014 
Consolidated Plan and 2010 Action Plan are available for public review on the City’s 
web page (www.SantaBarbaraCa.gov) and in the office of the City Clerk, Main Public 
Library and the Community Development Department.** 
 
ATTACHMENT: Community Development and Human Services Committee FY 2011 

Funding Recommendations by Priority and Rating 
 
PREPARED BY: Brian Bosse, Housing and Redevelopment Manager/RLB 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator/Community Development 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE
FY 2011 FUNDING RECOMMENDATIONS 

BY PRIORITY AND RATING

ATTACHMENT

2010-2011 RECOMMENDATIONS

AGENCY PROGRAM 2009-2010 2010-2011 AVG. HUMAN 

ALLOCATION REQUEST RATING CDBG SERVICES TOTAL

PUBLIC/HUMAN SERVICE

First Priority

S.B. Neighborhood Clinics Dental Care for the Homeless $20,000 $33,000 24.8 $25,000 $25,000
Transition House Comprehensive Homeless Services $43,000 $45,000 24.3 $43,000 $43,000
Casa Esperanza Homeless Center Community Kitchen $50,000 $56,000 24.2 $50,000 $50,000
Aids Housing Santa Barbara Sarah House $25,000 $25,000 24.1 $25,000 $25,000

S.B. Community Housing Corp. New Faulding Htl Coordinator $15,000 $15,000 24.1 $15,000 $15,000
Pacific Pride Foundation Necessities of Life $11,000 $25,000 24.0 $19,000 $19,000
Casa Esperanza Homeless Center Homeless Day Program $53,826 $59,826 23.8 $54,000 $54,000
S.B. Rape Crisis Center Same $25,000 $30,000 23.6 $25,000 $25,000

S.B. Co. DA - Victim Witness Assistance S.A.R.T. $15,000 $10,000 23.6 $8,000 $8,000
Foodbank SB Warehouse $25,000 $25,000 23.5 $25,000 $25,000
CADA Project Recovery Detox N/A $30,000 23.4 $20,000 $20,000
City At Peace City At Peace $7,500 $10,000 23.4 $8,000 $8,000

Domestic Violence Solutions Second Stage $7,000 $10,000 23.3 $7,000 $7,000
S.B. Community Housing Corp. Riviera Dual Diagnosis Prog. $12,000 $48,000 23.3 $20,000 $20,000
Domestic Violence Solutions Emergency Shelter $51,500 $60,000 23.2 $38,668 $11,332 $50,000
St. Vincent's PATHS $9,000 $15,000 23.0 $9,000 $9,000

S.B. Police Activities League PAL Jr. High After School Program $17,500 $37,656 22.5 $18,000 $18,000
Casa Serena Scholarship Program N/A $30,000 22.1 $15,000 $15,000
New Beginnings Counseling Center Homeless Outreach $15,000 $25,000 22.1 $15,000 $15,000
WillBridge Same $22,000 $25,000 22.1 $22,000 $22,000

Foodbank Brown Bag $8,000 $10,000 21.8 $8,000 $8,000
The PARC Foundation Youth CineMedia N/A $30,000 21.7 $10,000 $10,000
Community Action Commission Senior Nutrition $9,000 $19,000 21.5 $9,000 $9,000
Environmental Education Group Esperanza N/A $14,496 21.3 $8,000 $8,000

People's Self Help Housing Supportive Housing Program $11,500 $20,000 21.3 $9,000 $9,000
Bringing Our Community Home Homeless Jail Discharge $14,000 $31,631 21.3 $15,000 $15,000
Noah's Anchorage - CIYMCA Youth Shelter $22,000 $30,000 21.0 $22,000 $22,000
United Boys & Girls Club (Westside) Westside Teen Director N/A $33,280 20.9 $14,000 $14,000

People's Self Help Housing Youth Ed. Gang Prevention $7,000 $20,000 20.8 $5,000 $5,000
Catholic Charities Emergency Services $14,000 $20,000 20.7 $12,000 $12,000
Primo Boxing Club Say Yes to Kids $26,000 $40,992 20.4 $23,000 $23,000
ySTRIVE for Youth 4REAL Project N/A $25,000 20.1 $5,000 $5,000

Legal Aid Foundation Emergency Legal Services $24,000 $42,750 19.8 $17,000 $17,000
City of SB - P & R Job Apprenticeship Program $7,000 $25,000 18.1 $0 $0

Page 1 of 3



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE
FY 2011 FUNDING RECOMMENDATIONS 

BY PRIORITY AND RATING

ATTACHMENT

2010-2011 RECOMMENDATIONS

AGENCY PROGRAM 2009-2010 2010-2011 AVG. HUMAN 

ALLOCATION REQUEST RATING CDBG SERVICES TOTAL

Second Priority

Transition House Homelessness Prevention $7,500 $9,000 24.0 $8,000 $8,000
Independent Living Resource Ctr. Independent Living Services $23,000 $24,000 23.5 $23,000 $23,000
CALM Biling. Child Abuse Treatment $21,000 $30,000 23.0 $21,000 $21,000
Family Therapy Institute AHA! Academy of Healing Arts $10,000 $25,000 22.8 $10,000 $10,000

Friendship Center Adult Day Services $22,019 $25,000 22.5 $22,000 $22,000
Long Term Care Ombudsman Ombudsman Services $23,000 $25,000 22.4 $23,000 $23,000
Storyteller Children's Center Same $30,000 $30,000 22.4 $30,000 $30,000
Family Service Agency Big Brothers/Big Sisters $8,000 $12,000 22.3 $8,000 $8,000

Mental Health Association in S.B. Fellowship Club $10,500 $15,000 22.3 $10,500 $10,500
S.B. Bicycle Coalition Bici Centro Bicycle Repair $0 $35,000 22.0 $9,500 $9,500
Family Service Agency 2-1-1/HelpLine $23,000 $30,000 21.7 $23,000 $23,000
Planned Parenthood Peer Advocates/ Prevention Ed. $12,000 $15,000 21.6 $8,000 $8,000

Rental Housing Mediation Task Force $25,000 $35,000 21.6 $23,000 $23,000
ySTRIVE for Youth Project Excel $8,000 $25,000 21.4 $8,000 $8,000
Court Appointed Special Advocates CASA $10,000 $15,000 21.3 $8,000 $8,000
Boys & Girls Club of SB Power Hr Homework Club $8,000 $15,000 21.1 $7,924 $7,924

CADA Teen Court Program N/A $30,000 20.9 $0 $0
Jewish Federation of Greater S.B. Portraits of Survival N/A $18,000 20.8 $0 $0
Future Leaders of America Latino Youth Ldrship & Educ. $0 $25,000 20.7 $0 $0
Family Service Agency Family Resource Centers N/A $10,000 20.3 $0 $0

Jodi House Jodi House $0 $5,000 19.7 $0 $0
PathPoint Supported Employment Services N/A $27,000 18.6 $0 $0
S.B. Youth Marachi N/A $25,000 16.7 $0 $0

Total Public/Human Service: $1,481,631 $169,668 $703,256 $872,924

Page 2 of 3



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE
FY 2011 FUNDING RECOMMENDATIONS 

BY PRIORITY AND RATING

ATTACHMENT

2010-2011 RECOMMENDATIONS

AGENCY PROGRAM 2009-2010 2010-2011 AVG. HUMAN 

ALLOCATION REQUEST RATING CDBG SERVICES TOTAL

CAPITAL:

Noah's Anchorage - CIYMCA Capital N/A $94,945 23.8 $94,945 $94,945
SB Neighborhood Clinics Westside Clinic Flooring $45,654 $47,330 23.6 $47,330 $47,330
United Boys & Girls Club (Westside) Notes for Notes Music Box N/A $26,603 22.8 $26,603 $26,603
Girls Incorporated of Greater SB Exterior Paint $12,496 $26,590 22.6 $26,590 $26,590

City of SB - NIP Access Ramps $90,000 $60,000 21.8 $50,000 $50,000
City of SB - NIP Louise Lowry Davis-Westside Ctrs N/A $35,000 21.8 $35,000 $35,000
City of SB - Community Development Housing Rehabilitation $285,000 203,000 21.5 $203,000 $203,000
City of SB - NIP Ortega Park Restrooms N/A $225,000 21.3 $203,326 $203,326

City of SB - NIP Franklin Teen Ctr Renovation N/A $25,000 21.0 $25,000 $25,000
Women's Economic Ventures Microenterprise Development $25,000 $50,000 20.0 $25,000 $25,000
City of SB - NIP Cabrillo Ballfield Fence N/A $25,000 19.5 $25,000 $25,000
United Boys & Girls Club (Westside) Teen Center Facility N/A $85,000 19.4 $0 $0

Senior Programs of SB RSVP $0 $111,807 19.0 $0 $0
City of SB - NIP Neighborhood Enhancement N/A $70,000 13.8 $0 $0

Total Capital: $1,085,275 $761,794 $761,794

ADMIN:

City of SB RHMTF $79,272 $97,407 25.0 $97,407 $97,407
City of SB CDBG Admin $176,870 $169,877 24.8 $169,877 $169,877
City of SB Fair Housing $9,310 $8,941 24.5 $8,941 $8,941

Total Administration: $276,225 $276,225 $276,225

GRAND TOTAL $2,843,131 $1,910,943

Page 3 of 3


	1.DOC
	2.PDF
	3.DOC
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.DOC
	8.PDF
	9.DOC
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.PDF
	13.DOC
	14.PDF
	15.PDF
	16.DOC
	17.PDF
	18.PDF
	19.PDF
	20.PDF
	21.PDF
	22.PDF
	23.DOC
	24.DOC
	25.PDF
	Mayor/Chair
	James L. Armstrong
	Stephen P. Wiley
	City Attorney/Agency Counsel
	Frank Hotchkiss
	Michael Self
	City Hall



	ORDER OF BUSINESS



